10

PEA

Annual Report
2 01 5

Contents

General information

12
14

Critical factors facing PEA

15
17

Analysis of PEA’s power
distribution overview

PEA executives

51
58

Financial analysis

PEA Organization chart 2015

36
46

Key current and
future investments

Industry’s overview and outlook

20
31

PEA Board of directors

Areas liability and
offices Provincial Electricity Authority

66

PEA performance

Contents

Highlights

67
68

Energy sales

69
70

Electric energy for
lighting, business and industry

PEA Board’s report

79
80

Auditor’s report

Personnel

73
76

Report of the risk management
committee

Electric energy generated
and purchased

71
72

Socio-environmental responsibility

The customers

Financial statement

82
135

Ten year growth statistic

PEA

Annual Report
2015

11

12

PEA

Annual Report
2 01 5

General information

History

Provincial Electricity Authority is a government
enterprise under the Ministry of Interior. It was established
by a Royal Decree executed on March 6, 1954 and
then published in the Government Gazette on March
16, 1954. The appointment of the board of directors
as the control of the management is under the control
of the Department of Public Works, Municipal of the
Ministry of Interior and the Government by the Minister
of Interior has the power to general supervision. The
Provincial Electricity Organization was the initial capital
in accordance with the laws of 5 Million Baht with the
power in the number of 117 areas, and then the Provincial
Electricity Authority was established in accordance with
the law of the Provincial Electricity Authority BE. 1960, as
at September 28, 1960, by taking over the mission from
the Provincial Electricity Organization action continues.
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Mission

Provincial Electricity Authority is responsible for the provision of
standardized electricity services and related business to attain the
customer’s satisfaction on products and services through PEA’s
continual corporate development plans with the recognition of social
and environmental responsibility.
Vision

Provincial Electricity Authority aims to provide efficient and reliable
electricity services for quality of life, sustainability of economy and
society.
Core Value

Good service, Good governance
Objectives

1. The production is shipped and sold electric power.
2. Business electrical energy and other related or that is useful to
the Provincial Electricity Authority.
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Areas liability and offices Provincial Electricity Authority

Area N.1
Chiang Mai
Area NE.1
Udon Thani

Area N.2
Phitsanulok

Area NE.2
Ubon Ratchathani

Area N.3
Lop Buri

Area NE.3
Nakhon Ratchasima
Area C.1
Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya

Area C.3
Nakhon Pathom

PEA’s Head
Office, Bangkok

Area C.2 Chon Buri

Area S.1
Phetchaburi

Northern Region
Area N. 1

Area N. 2

Area N. 3

Northeastern Region
Area NE. 1

Area NE. 2

Area NE. 3

Area C. 2

Area C. 3

Central Region
Area C. 1

Area S.2
Nakhon Si Thammarat

Southern Region
Area S.3
Yala

Head Office

The PEA’s head office is located in Bangkok
and has responsibility on formulating policy and
planning with counseling and procurement support
is divided to Governor, Deputy Governor, Assistant
Governor Office of the Governor, Legal Office,
Internal Audit Bureau, Corporate Strategy and
Development Group, Network and Service Group,
and Supporting Group.

Area S. 1

Regional Offices

Area S. 2

Area S. 3

PEA has 12 regional offices in different 4
regional groups; Northern, Northeastern, Central,
and Southern (3 regional offices per regional group).
Each regional office is responsible to control and
management of PEA branch offices under the
authority cover 74 provinces, 186 PEA provincial
offices, 288 PEA district offices, and 459 sub-district
offices, approximately 510,000 km² , or 99% of
nationwide area.
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Critical factors facing PEA
In defining its strategies, PEA investigated internal and
external factors, strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats.
PEA applied risk management in support of its management to
cushion impacts. Below are the factors.
1. Government support to power generation

for industrial and household sectors

		 The current government promotes power generation
from renewable energy in support of economic growth over the
next several years, and liberalizes energy matters by advocating
more SPPs and VSPPs. It is widely projected that natural gas derived
from sources in the Gulf of Thailand (the main power-generating
fuel) is running out in 6-7 years, and therefore the government
plans to support LNG imports along with solar power generation by
the people sector. In short, PEA stands to lose customers in both
captioned sectors.
2. Power distribution of international

standard

		 PEA’s mission is to develop power distribution systems
that reach out to all and can sustain socio-economic development
with a focus on constantly managing efficient and internationalstandard power systems, particularly through quality and reliability
development, to fit the needs of each customer group. In some
areas, PEA may not yet continuously serve and distribute power, so
customers’ satisfaction and PEA’s reputation may suffer. That said,
PEA continues to accelerate its planned investment projects.
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3. System losses

		 This year, in PEA’s distribution system,
it posted greater losses than targeted, consisting of
technical and non-technical losses. At any rate, PEA
has developed an action plan to manage additional
power station construction work and resolve power
consumption violations, defective meters, and unitrecording errors, enabling itself to add income otherwise
lost through the system.
4. Personnel preparedness to

accommodate future operations

		 PEA houses numerous personnel with
specialized knowledge, competencies, and skills. In
the next several years, however, about half of its
current personnel will be retiring. PEA has foreseen
such a problem and devised a development plan for
preparedness for change.
5. Readiness of IT system

		 Today, the IT system is the backbone of
PEA’s business and transactions. The more the IT system
means to the organization, the greater risks it is facing.
PEA has taken into account reliability, security, and
user friendliness by applying ISO 27001 standard to the
development of its IT security master plan and undertook
a COBIT (Control Objective for Information and Related
Technology) risk assessment.

6. Financial management

		 PEA’s current ratio and debt-to-equity
ratio have both risen over the past year, the latter due
to its several future megaprojects planned. PEA is still
facing financial market risks (including interest rates and
foreign-currency exchange rates), credit risks (including
non-payment by customers or delayed payment), and
operation risks affecting its financial standing.
On the whole, PEA has defined measures to
keep such risks to manageable levels. To this end,
relevant units have taken defined measures and
reported outcomes to senior executives, the Risk
Management Committee, and the Board of Directors.
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Industry’s overview and outlook
Industry overview

Today Thailand’s power industry structure
is based on an Enhanced Single Buyer (ESB) model,
endorsed by the Cabinet on December 9, 2003. To
elaborate, the Electricity Generating Authority of
Thailand (EGAT) is the producer, transmitter, and single
buyer of power from private producers, as well as the
sole importer. EGAT sells and transmission power to
the Metropolitan Electricity Authority (MEA) and the
Provincial Electricity Authority (PEA) to, in turn, sell it to
users. In addition, EGAT sells part of the power direct
to some major users that are authorized to sell through
applicable laws and laws of neighboring countries. MEA

is responsible for distribution to users in Bangkok and
Metropolis; Nonthaburi and Samut Prakan, whereas PEA
distributes it to retail power consumers and those lying in
industrial zones in provinces beyond MEA’s service zones.
Also, certain private power producers can distribute power
direct to industrial customers. As for power distribution,
MEA and PEA own power stations, transmission systems,
grid systems, transformers, low-voltage power systems,
and power meters. The power tariffs for the same groups
of consumers are uniform nationwide, differing from type
to type. Finally, the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC)
provides oversight of the national power tariff structure.

Power Industry
Generator/Producer

Transmitter

Distributor

User

Hosehold Sector

Residential
>150 kWh
<150 kWh

		
		

Small Business
Medium Business
EGAT
IPPs*

PEA

EGAT

MEA

Industrial Sector

specific Business
Non Profit Organization
Pump Water for Agriculture

SPPs**

VSPPs***

Big Business

Temporary Power
PEA

MEA

* IPP (Independent Power Producer) ** SPP (Small Power Producer) *** VSPP (Very Small Power Producer)

Power Supply
Interruptible Powwer
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Outlook

Spanning 10 years, PEA’s strategic plan scopes
its operation, with annual reviews and adjustment to
align with changing circumstances and environment. In
2015, the plan underwent revision and turned into the
PEA Strategic Plan 2014-2023 (Revision 2, 2016).
Summary of PEA’s outlook and future
roles

Below are the highlights of the PEA Strategic Plan
2014-2023 (Revision 2, 2016).
Based on the external and internal circumstances
today and in the future, coupled with the business
capability of PEA, the business directions are dictated by
the following strategic objectives:
1. To strive for PEA’s sustainable growth and
good governance
2. To grow operational excellence for
leadership in the power distribution business
3. To be a customer-centric entity
4. To prepare for investing in and growing
new markets together with domestic and
international downstream businesses
5. To focus on innovation and technology.

To achieve these objectives, PEA has devised
the following strategies:
1. Promote responsibility to society, communities,
and the environment by valuing internationalization

of its CG and CSR standards in good governance in
pursuit of Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development (OECD) Principles; promotion of
responsible engagement for society, communities, and
the environment; and transparency as well as audit ability
of organizational management.
2. Promote sustainable organizational growth

by analyzing and defining drivers of organizational
sustainability, communicating and defining plans for
such sustainability, and valuing the improvement of
organizational performance for sustainability, based
largely on human capital.
3. Command good governance by focusing
on promotion of compliance with laws, rules, policies,
and standards (domestically and internationally) through
improvement of business processes, rules, criteria, and
performance that are efficient and transparent. To this
end, proactive business conduct is the emphasis, as is
the efficiency of affiliates.
4. Be an organization with fully efficient
administration and allocation of assets, to be achieved

through asset management to grow value from resources
and generate sustainable income for organization,
together with current process streamlining through cost
reduction, process shortening, and customers’ satisfaction
improvement.
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5. Post distribution of international-quality

9. Focus on excellence and integrated customer

power by valuing increased capability of power

service by employing the voice of customers in integrated

distribution systems that are efficient and far-reaching
so as to improve power systems and build power
stations to adequately dispatch power with stability
and reliability, while improving PEA standards for its
distribution systems, among others. Also, value smart-grid
development strategies leading to maximum efficiency
power consumption and link-ups with renewables (which
represent small power generators) scattered in various
areas so as to raise the reliability of PEA’s power systems.

improvement, and improve services while focusing on
nurturing sustainable customer relationship

6. Promote development of the human
capital by focusing on strategic HRM (Human Resource

Management), which focuses on effective and efficient
management of people to in turn boost PEA’s
confidence of having talented and conscientious people
working toward its goals. To this end, the values are
organizational restructuring for greater flexibility, given
suitable manpower; arrangement of career development
and career growth; and institution of recruitment and
selection together with a succession planning system.
7. Create a high-performance organization

by growing HRD (Human Resouvce Development) in
knowledge, skills, ability and other charocteristic so
that they may be prepared in line with organizational
strategies and future business growth.
8. Focus on product and service development
to meet customers’ needs and expectations by valuing
investigation of customers’ factors and various needs that

affect their satisfaction. To this end, PEA will analyze
survey outcomes about customers and the market before
making recommendations for business improvement.

10. Seek domestic and international investment
opportunities for downstream businesses by focusing on

promotion of investment and business development
in power station construction and consultancy by way
of academic collaboration and sharing of experience in
the power business and development of international
partnership with the public and private sectors. Also,
PEA will value income generation from supplementary
businesses to grow their collective proportion in the
overall income picture.
11. Promote renewables and efficient energy
consumption by valuing demand side management

promotion; joint power generation from renewables;
and support of efficient energy consumption and energy
conservation
12. Promote organizational innovation and
establishment of a Research and Development Innovation
Institute by valuing research, development and innovation

in smart grid and strong grid matters to enhance
power systems’ stability, efficiency, and sophistication,
and investigating ways to improve power systems to
accommodate future purchase of power from alternative
energy forms, which now appear more popular
13. Develop technologies for greater operating
efficiency by developing IT systems to support and

upgrade business standards; growing efficiency and
streamlining business processes; and valuing data
utilization development by improving PEA’s databases for
timeliness, accuracy, and reliability. Also, PEA will focus
on developing international standards of operating data
security.
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Analysis of PEA’s power distribution overview
Power purchase units

In 2015, PEA posted a total of 130,385 million
units of power purchase, a 3.91% rise from 2014.
Power distribution units

PEA posted a total of 123,210 million units of
power distribution, a 3.86% rise from last year, somewhat
beyond the 3.25% goal (projected as of October 16,
2015). To elaborate, the residential group expanded by
5.92% because of the warmer climate than last year,
caused by global climate change. The commercial group
expanded satisfactorily, buoyed by the momentum
of the latter half of the year following the economicstimulus public policy, driving the group’s consumption
growth by 7-8.4% as opposed to 4-4.5% during the
first half of the year. In particular, the tourism sector
registered continued healthy growth, which included
related service businesses like hotels, restaurants, retail
sales, department stores, and transport.
Meanwhile, the industrial sector posted a mild
rise of 1.95%, driven by key industrial groups like the
automotive, cement, and plastics sectors, but posted
sharp contraction of 10.63% in the steel industry due to
global market price disadvantages.
Power distribution units grouped by region
• Northern grew by 5.25% from previous year,

or 14.57% of the total power distribution.
• Northeastern grew by 5.38% from previous
year, or 15.63% of the total power distribution.
• Central grew by 3.51% from previous year,
or 53.05% of the total power distribution.
• Southern grew by 2.40% from previous year,
or 16.76% of the total power distribution.

Apparently, the Northeastern and the Northern
commanded comparable power distribution growth,
both spearheaded by the demand of the residential
group, whereas the Central posted the highest power
distribution percent growth, but was the third-largest
growing region due to its dense population region of
industrial power users—which explains why power
distribution followed the direction of the industrial sector.
Finally, the Sounthern featured the lowest growth rate,
driven mainly by the tourism sector.
Power distribution units grouped by voltage
• 230 kV: Power distribution units accounted

•

•

•

•

for 0.22% of the total, an 18.01% drop from
2014 in line with the slowdown of the steel
industry, the sole user of this voltage range.
Note that Thailand suffers world price
disadvantages to China.
115 kV: Power distribution units accounted
for 19.93% of the total, a 1.91% surge from
2014.
69 kV: Power distribution units accounted
for 0.03% of the total, a 64.22% drop from
2014, since certain users switched to 115 kV
instead.
22-33 kV:   Power distribution units
accounted for 46.63% of the total, a 3.46%
gain from 2014.
Below 22-33 kV: Power distribution units
accounted for 33.19% of the total, a 6.02%
gain from 2014.
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Of all these groups, the lowest-voltage 22-23
kV group posted the highest gain because the bulk of
the users were of the residential group facing warmer
weather virtually the whole year round, not to mention
the global climate change phenomenon, which caused
less rainfall than last year.
Power distribution units grouped by power
tariff

In 2015, power distribution units grouped by
power tariff grew across the board with the exception
of the agriculture-pumping group: residential, by
5.92%; small enterprises, 5.80%; medium enterprises,
4.02%; large enterprises, 1.82%; specialized enterprises,
6.60%; non-profit organizations, 26.36%; agriculturepumping, 6.60% (drop); temporary power use, 0.74%;
uninterruptible power, 21.71%; interruptible rate, 10.48%;
and free-of-charge electricity, 6.62% growth.
Power distribution units by customer group
• Residential: Accounting for 23.47% of

the total power distribution, these users
consumed 5.92% more than last year
because of warmer weather accompanying
global climate change, which resulted in
less seasonal rain, ultimately raising the
temperature over last year, particularly
residential users consuming more than 150
units a month, who posted an average of
8.61% growth from last year.
• Commercial: Accounting for 24.04% of the
total power distribution, this group consumed
5.94% more than last year, mainly driven by
the public policy of economic stimuli, which

resulted in more consumption and a rising
number of inbound tourists. What was more,
the slumping oil price resulted in ballooning
power consumption of 5.93% by the hotel
group and 5.55% by the department store
group.
• Industries: Accounting for 49.47% of the total
power distribution, this group featured 1.95%
growth, tracking the growth of the automotive
group, which benefited from the public sector’s
favorable tax policy aimed to boost domestic
demand; demand for new models of cars from
the world market; and expanded production
of cement and plastics to meet demand
of downstream industries. Meanwhile, the
electronics industry posted mild growth due
to the decreased need for Hard Disk Drivers
(HDDs), while the steel industry suffered
massive contraction due to China’s heavy
market dumping of iron and steel.
• Others (non-profit organizations, agriculturepumping, temporary power use, and freeof-charge electricity): Accounting for 3.02%
of the total power distribution, this group
posted a 3.79% gain, mainly tracking realestate construction work.
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Power distribution units grouped by
economic activity
The high-consumption groups are as follows:
Manufacturing group: Expanding by 1.74% from

last year, the group’s key industries are ranked below:
• Electronics: This industry expanded by
0.68% with exports to the Chinese market for production
of new-model smartphones and computer tablets
under new capacities in the previous period. Massive
inventories and sluggish economic growth, however,
subdued the output rise.
• Automotive: This industry expanded
by 7.17% as the situation began to return to normal,
with new models of cars being produced to meet the
domestic demand arising from the government’s excise
tax restructuring of 2016, particularly a Pick-up passenger
vehicles and a Sport utility vehicles, and the export of
eco-cars and commercial vehicles to the world market.
• Steel: This industry shrank by 10.63%
because of China’s market-dumping policy—notably the
sale of cheap steel—that gave its exporters advantages in
the world market. Also, the industry slowdown followed
stagnant outputs of downstream industries, notably
electrical appliances.
• Cement: This industry grew by 5.90%
together with the growth in construction permit areas,
which prompted private construction investment, in
turn raising product outputs in the cement and concrete
group.
• Plastics: This industry surged by 4.65% to
meet rising demand worldwide. Plastics find applications
in many industries, including packaging, automotive parts,
construction materials, and household utensils.

This group gained 8.43%
with the rising number of tourists, notably Chinese and
Europeans, despite the terrorist acts in France, which
wielded some impact. Also, the slumping oil price
spurred domestic travel and boosted power consumption
by the retail and wholesale group, reflecting more
spending by quality tourists.
Social services: This group expanded by 8.13%
with rising office power consumption of public agencies,
schools, hospitals, temples, and foundations to counter
warmer weather than previous year.
Agricultural: This group grew by 2.99%, as
farmers reaped their rice harvests later in the year
because of the delayed rainy season and as power
demand for animal husbandry (pigs and poultry) surged
to keep up with rising domestic consumption of meat.
Sales and hotel:

Losses

In 2015, PEA posted a total of 7,175 million loss
units, accounting for 5.50%, which exceeded the 5.46%
goal by 56.31 million units (0.04%). Compared with last
year, this mild loss rise was mainly due to low-voltage
power consumption, particularly the residential group,
which consumed more power as a result of warmer
weather. Below are the regional loss figures previous
year:
• Northern: 7.09%
• Northeastern: 7.20%
• Central: 4.03%
• Southern: 7.06%.
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Positive factors
•

Number of power users

In 2015, PEA customers totaled 18.17 million,
a 0.49-million (2.79%) rise over last year. The Central
Region posted the biggest percentage rise of 3.75%; the
South, 2.74%; the Northeast, 2.44%; and the North, 2.42%.
Below is the customer group breakdown:
• Residential (89.92% of the total): 2.64%
growth
• Commercial (8.35% of the total): 4.05%
growth
• Industrial (0.19% of the total): 3.30% growth
• Others (non-profit organizations, agriculturepumping, temporary power, and free-ofcharge power, together accounting for 1.54%
of the total): 4.78% growth.
Forecast of power distribution units for
2016

PEA has projected improved power distribution
for 2016. The forecast team on February 29, 2016,
projected preliminary power distribution growth for the
whole year at 4.13% due to the following factors:

Domestic and regional economy

		 The domestic economy appears brighter as a
result of the public policy focus on spurring the economy
in pursuit of domestic spending, greater exports, tourism
promotion, and accelerated budget disbursement.
The stable political situation should support focused
economic growth, in turn boosting confidence among the
private and the household sectors in further investment
and consumption.
		 Meanwhile, the global economy looks
likewise set to improve with the economic recovery of
developed countries, particularly the United States and
European Union, and with the launch of AEC (ASEAN
Economic Community), a driver of investment relocation
among member countries.
•

Industrial manufacturing

		 Below are promising key industrial groups,
thanks to the economic stimulus measures and
acceleration of public spending and investment, which
promote demand for domestic goods:
o Electronics: This group should recover
		
toward the year-end, thanks to process
reconfiguration to meet demand for
SSD, together with new communication
apparatus and electronics appliances,
as modern consumers turn to gadgets
for auxiliaries for electronics appliances
for entertainment and convenience,
including smartwatches.
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o Automotive: Particularly in Europe,
this group tends to gain where demand
for eco-cars still drive demand, while
domestic demand could fall with the
restructured excise taxes in 2016.
o Steel: This group should post mild
		
recovery in response mainly to domestic
demand for public infrastructural
investment, while the private sector
could witness sluggish growth together
with real-estate consumers’ purchase
and investment. Still, risk remains for
China’s iron and steel outputs, which
are cheaper than domestic outputs.
o Cement: This group tends to
		
improve from last year as a result
of the government’s economic
stimuli, underscoring acceleration of
budget disbursement for investment
in infrastructural construction and
exports to newly opened neighboring
countries like Myanmar. Note that new
private-sector investment areas will be
launched soon, including SEZs (Special
Economic Zones).
•

Public spending and investment

		 This key factor will strengthen economic
growth through the acceleration of budget disbursement
in projects, including mega-infrastructure and border
SEZs, rural infrastructural projects to boost the values
of goods, and trans-ASEAN railway construction.

•

Baht depreciation

		 Depreciation of the Baht supports the
export sector, while boosting the revenues and liquidity
of operators of several groups. In 2016, the Baht should
weaken in response to the policy interest rate rise
announced by the Central Bank of the United States
(FED).
•

Oil price

		 Slumping oil prices raise the overall
purchasing power, enabling people to pay less for their
routine travel and trips, in turn promoting domestic
travel and trimming costs for the business and industrial
sectors—thus boosting their competitiveness. The oil
price should remain subdued until the year-end.
(AEC)

•

Launch of ASEAN Economic Community:

		 The launch of AEC turned Thailand into
a hub in several ways, including tourism, logistics, and
medical hab, while promoting domestic investment, in
turn bolstering demand for electricity.
•

Special Economic Zone (SEZ)

		 Seen promoting electricity demand is the
public sector’s drive for SEZs in 10 border provinces,
initially in Tak, Mukdahan, Sa Kaeo, Trat, and Songkhla
and later in Nong Khai, Narathiwat, Chiang Rai, Nakhon
Phanom, and Kanchanaburi. Also foreseen is investment
in infrastructural projects, many industries, and
construction of countless residences.
•

Tourism

		 Besides the launch of AEC, a consistent
tourism promotion policy would raise the number
of inbound tourists, particularly quality ones, whose
spending tends to contribute to industrial growth.
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•

Residential growth

		 The rise in domestic population and
expatriates in Thailand, together with warming
temperatures, contributes to soaring power consumption
by residential users, particularly those residences
consuming more than 150 units a month, most of which
are equipped with air-conditioners and coolers.
Negative factors
•

World economy

		 While major trading partners could see
improved economies, they still stand the risk of growth
falling short of goals, which could have far-reaching
impacts and hurt overall stability.
•

Household sector

		 Household debts of previous periods could
keep the proportions of such debts high, subduing the
purchasing power of some while keeping their spending
controlled, which could keep overall economic growth
short of goals.
•

Private investment

		 The still-sluggish world economy not
meeting goals could keep exports lethargic, which
remains a key factor for investment delays awaiting a
credible investment signal, depending on the efficiency
of public policy implementation that focuses more on
exports.
•

Agricultural sector’s income

		 The still-subdued agricultural prices,
together with potential natural disasters, could dent
outputs and keep farmers’ income low.
•

Domestic economy

		 Unless the policy of domestic economic
stimuli is effectively fulfilled, confidence in consumption
could drop.
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Comparison of Power Sale 2012 – 2015 : Customers

Customers

Residential
Business
Industry
Other
Total
* Note :		

M.kWh

Ratio (%)

2012

2013

2014

2015

2012

2013

25,050
27,492
53,354
5,831
111,726

26,237
28,573
56,438
3,361
114,609

27,302
27,963
59,780
3,587
118,632

28,918 10.48 4.74
29,623 16.18 3.93
60,946 6.50 5.78
3,723 (10.46) (42.36)
123,210 8.53 2.58

2014

4.06
(2.14)
5.92
6.74
3.51

2015

5.92
5.94
1.95
3.79
3.86

Change electricity price structure from Bureaucracy to Small, Medium, and Large organizations since
October 2012.
M.kWh
70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000

Comparison of Power Sale 2012 - 2015 : Customers
2012

Residential

2013

2014

Business

2015

Industry

Other

Ratio Power Sale 2012 - 2015 : Customers

(%)

2012

30.00

2013

2014

2015

10.00
-10.00
-30.00
-50.00
Residential

Business

Industry

Other
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Comparison of Power Sale 2012 – 2015 : 10 Top Industries
M.kWh

Industries

2012

Electronic
Motor vehicle
Steel
Cement
Plastic
Hotel
Department store
Ice
Livestock
Textile

2013

3,077
3,447
3,602
3,394
2,611
2,396
2,016
2,067
1,500
1,482

Ratio (%)
2014

3,848
3,763
4,198
3,340
2,834
2,529
2,203
2,096
1,544
1,524

2015

4,151
3,830
4,460
3,471
3,001
2,596
2,460
2,213
1,707
1,631

4,179
4,104
3,986
3,676
3,141
2,750
2,596
2,353
1,881
1,665

2012

2013

2014

(3.65)
33.01
1.04
6.13
6.79
7.12
8.55
8.29
9.70
(1.98)

25.06
9.16
16.53
(1.57)
8.53
5.53
9.28
1.39
2.87
2.89

7.86 0.68
1.77 7.17
6.25 (10.63)
3.92 5.90
5.91 4.65
2.65 5.93
11.65 5.55
5.56 6.35
10.56 10.24
7.00 2.11

Comparison of Power Sale 2012 - 2015 : 10 Top Industries
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Comparison of Power Sale 2012 – 2015 : Customers
Customers (person)

Customers

2013

Residential
Business
Industry
Other
Total

2014

Ratio (%)

2015

2016

2013

2014

15,007,329 15,469,011 15,919,829 16,339,328 3.31
1,340,716
1,400,578
1,457,430
1,516,430 16.68
28,422
30,836
32,687
33,766 11.79
224,302
257,068
268,657
281,501 (30.20)
16,600,769 17,157,493 17,678,603 18,171,025 3.61

3.08
4.46
8.49
14.61
3.35

Comparison of Power Sale 2012 - 2015 : Customers
2012

Person
20,000,000

2013

2014

2015

15,000,000

10,000,000
5,000,000

0
Residential

Business

Industry

Other

Ratio Power Sale 2012 - 2015 : Customers
2012

(%)

2013

2014

2015

20
10
0
-10
-20
-30
-40
Residential

Business

Industry

Other

2015

2.91
4.06
6.00
4.51
3.04

2016

2.64
4.05
3.30
4.78
2.79
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PEA Board of directors

Chairman of
the Board of Directors

General Viroach
Buacharoon

(25th November 2014 - 17th July 2015)
Date of Birth :

• 19 July 1950

Current Position :

Qualification :

• Bachelor of Science, Chulachomklao Royal
Military Academy

• Chairman of Advisor to the Board of Directors of Member of a Committee in
Royal Thai Army Television Broadcasting Business Other Departments/Organizations :
• Public Relation Advisor of ASEAN Potash Mining • None
Public Company Limited
Notable Work Experience :

• Chief Advisor, Royal Thai Army
• Assistant Commander in Chief, Royal Thai Army
• Commander of the 4th Army Area and Director
of Internal Operations Command Region 4
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Chairman of
the Board of Directors

Mr. Tawin Pleansri

(20th July 2014 – Present)
(Directors’ Pool 2014)
Date of Birth :

• 5 December 1953
Current Position :

• Retired Government Official
Notable Work Experience :

Qualification :

• Master of Political Science, Chulalongkorn
University
• Bachelor of Laws, Thammasart University
• Bachelor of Economics, Chulalongkorn University

• Deputy Secretary General of Office of the Member of a Committee in
National Security Council
Other Departments/Organizations :
• Advisor on Security Coordination Office of • None
the National Security Council
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Date of Birth :

• 6 April 1957

Current Position :

(Directors’ Pool 2014)

•

Inspector General of Ministry of Finance

Notable Work Experience :

• Deputy Permanent Secretary Chief of Income Group
of Ministry of Finance
Qualification :

• Master of Public Administration, National Institute of
Development Administration
• Bachelor of Laws, Ramkhamhaeng University
Member of a Committee in

Other Departments/Organizations :

• Board of Directors of Government Housing Bank
• Board of Directors of Dhanarak Asset Development
Co.,Ltd.

Date of Birth :

Gen. Chatudom
Titthasiri

• 31 October 1956
Current Position :

• Director-General Office of Defence Budge
Notable Work Experience :

• Deputy Chief of Staff, Royal Thai Army
• Comptroller of the Army, Royal Thai Army
Qualification :

• Master of Arts Program in Security Studies, Command
and General Staff College
• Bachelor of Science, Chulachomklao Royal Military
Academy
Member of a Committee in

Other Departments/Organizations :

• None

Mr. Prasit
Suebchana

(Directors’ Pool 2012)
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Date of Birth :

Directors

• 7 September 1950
Current Position :

• President of Thailand Volleyball Association
Notable Work Experience :

• Permanent Secretary of Ministry of Interior
• Director General of Department of Local Administration
Qualification :

• Master of Political Science (Government) Chulalongkorn
University
• Bachelor of Political Science (Government)
Chulalongkorn University
Member of a Committee in

Other Departments/Organizations :

• None

Date of Birth :

Mr. Rerngsak
Mahavinitchaimontri

• 14 April 1953

Current Position :

• Retired Government Official
Notable Work Experience :

• Governor of Chachoengsao Province
• Governor of Nakhon Phanom Province
• Governor of Kanchanaburi Province
Qualification :

• Master of Public Administration, National Institute of
Development Administration
• Bachelor of Political Science (Government),
Chulalongkorn University
Member of a Committee in

Other Departments/Organizations :

• None

Mr. Somporn
Chaibangyang

Directors
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Date of Birth :

• 17 October 1961
Current Position :

• Deputy Director, Computer Security Center, Defense
Information and Space Technology
Notable Work Experience :

(Directors’ Pool 2014)

• Director, Protocol Division, Office of External Relations,
Office of Policy and Planning, Office of Permanent
Secretary for Defence
• Deputy Director, Mathematic and computer Department,
Chulachomklao Royal Military Academy
• Instructor, Electrical Engineering Department,
Chulachomklao Royal Military Academy
Qualification :

• Ph.D. Computational Science, George Mason University,
USA (Royal Thai Army Scholarship, NASA Research Funded)
• Master of Computer Science, The George Washington
University, USA (Royal Thai Army Scholarship, Stipend Award)
• Bachelor of Electrical Engineering, Chulachomklao
Royal Military Academy (Dean’s list)
Classes :

• DAP (Director Accreditation Program), DCP (Director
Certification Program), SANS SEC504 Hacker Techniques
Exploits & Incident Handling, CISSP (Certified Information
System Security Professional)
Member of a Committee in
Other Departments/Organizations :

Date of Birth :

Mr. Danucha
Pichayanan

• 5 August 1970

Current Position :

• Senior Advisor of Office of the National Economic and
Social Development Board
Notable Work Experience :

• Senior Advisor in Policy and Plan of National Economic
and Social Development Board
• Director of Infrastructure Project Office of National
Economic and Social Development Board
Qualification :

• Master of Engineering Management, the George
Washington University USA
• Bachelor of Engineer, Chulalongkorn University
Member of a Committee in

Other Departments/Organizations :

• None

• Board of Directors of TISA (Thailand Information
Security Association)
Colonel. Prachya
Chalermwat, Ph.D.

Directors
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• 15 September 1955
Current Position :

(Directors’ Pool 2012)

• Chief Operating Officer Infrastructure; PTT Public
Company Limited
Notable Work Experience :

• Chief Financial Officer;PTT Public Company Limited
Qualification :

• Master of Engineering in Operations Research, Cornell
University, New York, USA
• Master of Business Administration, Cornell University,
New York, USA
• Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering and
Operations Research, Syracuse University, New York, USA
Member of a Committee in

Other Departments/Organizations :

Date of Birth :

Asst. Prof. Boonchai
Sowanwanichakul

• Chairman of the Board of Directors of Global Power
Synergy Public Company Limited
• Board of Directors and Member of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of IRPC Public Company Limited
• Chairman of the Board of Directors of Sakari Resources
Limited

• 28 May 1958

Current Position :

• Advisor to the President
of Chulalongkorn University
Notable Work Experience :

• Vice President of Chulalongkorn University
Qualification :

• Bachelor of Engineer (Computer Science) Chulalongkorn
University
Member of a Committee in

Other Departments/Organizations :

• Board of Directors of KTB Computer Services Co.,Ltd.
• Board of Directors of Forth Smart Service Public Co.,
Ltd.

Mr. Surong
Bulakul

Directors
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Date of Birth :

• 5 February 1963
Current Position :

• Board of Directors of Geo-Informatics and Space
Technology Development Agency (Public Organization)
• Director and Audit Committee; Finansia Syrus
Securities Public Company Limited

(Directors’ Pool 2014)

Notable Work Experience :

• Board of Directors of Geo-Informatics and Space
Technology Development Agency (Public Organization)
• Director and Audit Committee; Finansia Syrus
Securities Public Company Limited
Qualification :

• Master of Political Science (Politics and Governments);
Sukhothai Thammathirat University
• Bachelor of Engineer; Chulalongkorn University
Member of a Committee in

Other Departments/Organizations :

• Board of Directors of Geo-Informatics and Space
Technology Development Agency (Public Organization)
• Director and Audit Committee of Finansia Syrus
Securities Public Company Limited
Date of Birth :

• 7 December 1959

Mr. Yodphot
Wongrukmit

Current Position :

• Senior Executive Vice President, Corporate
Administration and Information Technology; Bangchak
Petroleum PLC.
Notable Work Experience :

• Senior Executive Vice President, Marketing Business;
Bangchak Petroleum PLC.
• Executive Vice President, Marketing Business; Bangchak
Petroleum PLC.
Qualification :

• Master Degree in Business Administration (MBA), MTSU,
USA.
• Bachelor of Economics (2nd Class Honors), Faculty of
Economics, University of Thai Chamber of Commerce
Member of a Committee in

Other Departments/Organizations :

• Board of Directors of Bangchak Green Net Co.,Ltd.

Mr. Phaiboon
Siripanoosatien

(Directors’ Pool 2012)
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Date of Birth :

• 8 August 1966

Current Position :

Assoc. Prof. Wisuit
Sunthonkanokpong,
Ph.D.
Member of a Committee in

• Associate Dean for Academic
Administration and Graduated Studies,
Faculty of Industrial Education, King Mongkut’s Institute
of Technology Ladkrabang
Notable Work Experience :

• Member of Council of King Mongkut’s Institute of
Technology Ladkrabang
• Member of Academic Council of King Mongkut’s
Institute of Technology Ladkrabang
Qualification :

• Ph.D. Philosophy in Learning Innovation of Technology,
King Mongkut’s University of Technology Thonburi
• Master of Engineering in Electrical Engineering, King
Mongkut’s Institute of Technology Ladkrabang
• Bachelor of Science in Industrial Education in
Telecommunication Engineering, King Mongkut’s
Institute of Technology Ladkrabang

Other Departments/Organizations :

• Member of committee of Faculty of Technical
Education, Rajamangkala University of Technology
Thanyaburi
• Member of academic committee of Department
Electronics and Telecommunication, Faculty of
Engineering, Southeast Asia University
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Directors

Date of Birth :

• 8 February 1977
Current Position :

Asst. Prof. Prechaporn
Suwatnodom,
Qualification :
Ph.D.
• Doctor of Philosophy in Civil Engineering; University of

• Engineer, Professional Level,
Director Bureau of Planning, Department of Highway,
Ministry of Transport

•

• Advisor to the Permanent Secretary; Ministry of
Transport
• Director of Air Park Industry and Air Craft Industry,
Ministry of Transport
• Assistant to Thailand Trade Representative, Office of
the Prime Minister
• Honorary Advisor Committee of Transportation National
Legislative Assembly
• Representatives for Negotiation about Further Study
between Thai students and US Educational Institutes.

•

Notable Work Experiences :

•

•

California, Los Angeles, USA
Master of Engineering (Honors); University of California,
Los Angeles, USA
Master of Science (honors); University of California, Los
Angeles, USA
Bachelors of Science in Civil Engineering (honors),
Specialization: Structure Engineering; University of
California, Irvine, USA
Bachelors of Science in Civil Engineering (honors),
Specialization: Transportation Engineering; University
of California, Irvine, USA

Member of a Committee in

Other Departments/Organizations :

• Committee of Foundation of Sufficiency Economy
Family
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Date of Birth :

(Directors’ Pool 2014)

• 10 November 1958
Current Position :

• PEA Governor (3rd June 2015 – Present)
Notable work experience :

• Deputy Governor (Human Resource)
• Provincial Electricity Authority Area 1 (Central)
Phra Nakhon Si Ayutthaya Province
Qualification :

• Master of Public and Private Management Program,
The National Institute of Development Administration.
• Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical Engineering
Kasetsart University
Member of a Committee in

Other Departments/Organizations :

• None

Date of Birth :

• 2 January 1956

Mr. Numchai
Lowattanatakul

Current Position :

• PEA Governor
(8th December 2012 – 21st February 2015)
Notable work experience :

• Deputy Governor (Planning and Power System
Development)
• Deputy Governor (Office of the Governor) and Acting
Managing Director; PEA Encom International Co., Ltd.
Qualification :

• Master of Business Administration; Kasetsart University
• Bachelor of Engineer; Chulalongkorn University
Member of a Committee in

Other Departments/Organizations :

• None

Mr. Sermsakool
Klaikaew

Directors
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PEA executives

Mr. Sermsakool Klaikaew

Governor
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Mr. Somchai
Srisamrerng

Deputy Governor Office
of the Governor

Mr. Vilas

Ngamsangroongsaroj

Deputy Governor of Planning and
System Development

Mr. Punlop
Pinyowiwat

Mr. Manoon
Chantaraksa

Deputy Governor Office
of the Governor

Mr. Poonsiri
Dharmasaroj

Deputy Governor Corporate Strategy
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Deputy Governor Office
of the Governor

Mr. Ekachai
Saktusana

Deputy Governor Electricity
Authority Region 1
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Mr.
Kamonchanok
Vichaisueb

Deputy Governor Electricity
Authority Region 2

Mr. Surasak
Pongsawat

Deputy Governor Engineering

Mr. Prakan
Wongput

Deputy Governor Electricity
Authority Region 3

Mr. Suwat
Chiochanchai

Deputy Governor ICT

Mr. Pongsak
Sittipong

Deputy Governor Electricity
Authority Region 4

Mr. Panya
Laochu

Deputy Governor Construction and
Project Management
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Mr. Sakorn
Payakkarueng

Deputy Governor Operation and
Maintenance

Mr. Surasak
Trithan

Deputy Governor of
Human Resource Development

Mr. Amnuaychai
Suwansontorn

Deputy Governor Corporate Services

Mr. Somphop
Thengthabthim

Deputy Governor of Corporate Social
Responsibility
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Mrs. Porntip
Dechpinya

Deputy Governor of
Accounting and Finance
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Key current and future investments
The key goal of the Power Development
Plan under the 11th National Economic and Social
Development Plan (2012-2016) (“11th Plan”) is the
development of PEA’s power systems under this plan
period for adequacy, security, service standards, and
alignment with the policy and strategies for national
development of the government and agencies related
to power system development.
Formulation of such power development plan
envisages plans aligning with the power demand forecasts
endorsed by a subcommittee on power demand forecast
on October 16, 2015, forwarded by the taskforce on
power demand forecast. The base-case forecast findings
are used for formulating investment plans. Due to
the worsening energy and environmental crises, while
national development needs energy as a basic building
block, PEA’s key focus (apart from providing quality and
efficient power services) is to strive for Strong, Smart, and
Safe power network. Such would represent key drivers
in the development of PEA’s Smart Grid to improve life
and be environmentally friendly. In addition, quality
must be a key consideration for the power systems,
alternative energy, efficient asset management for quality
consumption, support of clean energy, reduction of
carbon dioxide emissions, adjustment of power demand,
access to services, and satisfaction.
Toward the end of the 11th Plan (2016), it was
forecast that power demand (as projected by the power
demand forecast of October 16, 2015) for the base case
of 126,873 million units, would peak at 18,862 megawatts
(MW) for about 18.75 million users, with annual growth
rates of about 4.27%, 3.29%, and 3.20%.

Plans and Projects
Government’s plans and policies related

to power service provision

PEA’s Power Development Plan under the 11th
Plan period takes into account the following energy policy
of the government:
1. Promote and drive the energy industry as
a strategic industry to generate income for the country,
raise investment in energy infrastructure, and evolve
regional energy business hubs by leveraging geographical
advantages.
2. Forge energy security by pursuing and
developing energy sources and power systems from
domestic and international sources, while diversifying
energy sources and types in a suitable and sustainable
way.
3. Promote the production, consumption,
and research and development (R&D) of substitute
and alternative energy by setting a goal for fossil fuel
replacement of at least 25% within 10 years. Ensure
integrated industrial development.
4. Promote and drive full-fledged energy
conservation by lowering energy consumption per
product unit by 25% within 10 years. Implement
integrated development, promote high-efficiency
equipment and facilities, promote development of
clean energy to lower emission of greenhouse gases
and ease global warming, and cultivate consumers’
awareness of conscientious energy consumption together
with efficiency for genuine, continual systems in the
production, transport, and household sectors.
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•

Objectives of Power Development Plan under

11 Plan period
th

PEA’s objectives for implementing its Power
Development Plan under the 11th Plan period are as
follows:
1. To give power systems quality, strength,
reliability, and safety, suiting each area’s needs
2. To supply quality and adequate power
3. To expand power services for all areas
4. To give PEA business efficiency, regional
acceptability and sustainable business operation
5. To improve the quality of goods and services
through suitable technology
6. To give world-class efficiency to the asset
spending of power systems

7. To improve information and communication
technology systems
8. To improve society and the environment
9. To develop a smart grid leading to maximum
efficiency of power consumption.
•

Investment Planning

To align with the strategic approaches for
national development under the 11th Plan and in view of
future power demand and its own financial standing, PEA
has mapped out an investment scheme under the 11th
Plan, investment consisting of 12 projects and perform
in the future. (Expected to be invested in the next three
years), and 11 projects are 2 plans.

Core Investment
Investment Cost (Million Baht)
No.

Project

1. Transmission system and substation
development project, 9th stage, phase 1
2. Transmission system and substation
development project, 9th stage, phase 2
3. Transmission system and substation
development project, 9th stage, phase 3
4. Transmission system and substation
development project, 9th stage, phase 4
5. The power distribution system
reinforcement project, 7th stage
6. Distribution system reliability
improvement project, 3rd stage

Domestic
Loans

PEA
Revenues

Total

Performance Status
(as at December 31,
2015)

5,295

1,765

7,060 15.36% completed

3,405

1,135

4,540 22.84% completed

11,314

3,771

15,085 16.28% completed

3,360

1,125

4,485 25.65% completed

12,950

4,320

17,270 86.09% completed

11,365

3,790

15,155 35.00% completed
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Investment Cost (Million Baht)
No.

Project

7. Submarine cable extension to electrified
island project (Ko Pha-ngan, Suratthani
province)
8. New rural household electrification
project
9. Remote rural household electrification
project
10. Distribution system dispatching center
improvement project
11. PEA small hydropower development
at dame of royal irrigation department
project
12. Smart grid in development project
(Pattaya in Chonburi Province)
Total project is in progress
Expected to be invested in the next three years
1. Transmission and distribution
development project, 1st stage
2. Major cities power system development
project, 1st stage
3. System voltage conversion from 33 kV
to 22 kV project in southern region, 1st
stage
4. Power system development for special
economic zone project 1st stage

Domestic
Loans

PEA
Revenues

Total

Performance Status
(as at December 31,
2015)

820

274

1,094 20.36% completed

2,761

926

910

305

3,687 63.88% completed
(84,086 households)
1,215 35.48% completed
(4,116 households)

3,395

1,135

4,530 In procurement process

606

202

808 In procurement process

802

267

56,983

19,015

47,315

15,785

8,750

2,920

2,967

990

2,355

785

1,069 Under drafting TOR for
technical
75,998
63,100 During PEA board of
director approval
11,670 During PEA board of
director approval at
December 23, 2015
3,957 under preparing feasibility
report
3,140 During PEA board of
director approval
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Investment Cost (Million Baht)
No.

Project

5. The 115 kV submarine cable extension
to Samui island, Suratthani Province
6. Geographic information system
development plan, 3rd stage
7. Agriculture electrification project, 2nd
stage
8. Power generation development from
wind farm in the southern region project
9. Development plan for power
interruption analysis and solution center
(plan 2)
10. Renewable energy generation
development project on Kut island and
Mak island, Trat province
11. Micro grid development project at Mae
Sariang district, Mae Hong Son province
12. Micro hydro power plant for community
project
13. Power system development for special
economic zone project, 2nd stage
Total expected to be invested in the next
three years
Total (Million Baht)

Domestic
Loans

PEA
Revenues

Total

Performance Status
(as at December 31,
2015)

1,597

533

1,560

530

2,130 During PEA board of
director approval
2,090 Under drafting TOR

1,520

510

2,030 During a cabinet approval

910

305

1,215 During a Feasibility study

780

265

1,045 During a Feasibility study

241

81

322 During PEA board of
director approval

185

80

120

40

265 During PEA board of
director approval
160 During a Feasibility study

1,800

600

2,400 During a Feasibility study

70,100

23,424

93,524

127,083

42,439

169,522

-
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Source of Fund

The fund for the transmission and distribution development plan under the 11th NESDP can be classified by
sources into domestic loan and PEA’s revenue.
Amount
(Million Baht)

Source

1. Domestic loans
2. PEA’s revenues

127,083
42,439
169,522

Total
Expected outcomes

With the successful execution of PEA’s power
development plan under the 11th Plan described above
and the projections under the 12th Plan (2017-2021), here
are the expected outcomes:
1.

Power service expansion

		 PEA successfully expands its power services
to accommodate the power demand for each area.
Detail

- Peak demand (MW)
- Units distributed (GWh)
- Number of users (millions)

Share (%)

74.99
25.03
100

Peak power demand is projected to grow from 15,399
MW in 2011 to 19,490 MW in 2016, a 4.82% annual rise.
Meanwhile, the number of power users grows from 16.02
million in 2011 to 18.13 million, a 2.5% annual rise.
As a result, the expected outcomes in power service
expansion are summarized below.

2011

2016

2021

% annual rise
(under 11th Plan)

15,399
102,947
16.02

19,490
128,298
18.13

23,403
154,501
20.18

4.82%
4.50%
2.50%

Note: The peak power demand now requires a different computation method in line with PDP2015, resulting in
lower figures than previously shown. Also, presentation of power consumption volumes excludes loss units
because losses vary from year to year and so tends to distort true power demand.
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2. Improvement in power distribution

security

		 PEA successfully improves its power quality
and steady distribution, eases dropped voltages, and
eases frequent, extended blackouts. The goals for
the 11th Plan (2012-2016) are as follows: SAIFI (System
Average Interruption Freguency Index) 5.20/times/user/
year and SAIDI (System Average Interruption Duration
Index) 161 minutes/user/year.
3. Economic and social aspects

		
		
		

		

		

3.1 Efficient energy management
3.2 Improved performance of power
systems and service quality for users
3.3 Greater proportion of clean-energy
consumption and lowering of carbon
dioxide emissions
3.4 Delay in major power plant construction
and lowering of foreign-exchange
payment for energy imports
3.5 Secure power systems through fewer,
shorter blackouts

		 3.6 Consumers’ choice of the best
power consumption management for
households, offices, or buildings for
their money in their desired forms to
save on power bills
		 3.7 Greater income derived from power sales
and a choice of services and monitoring
of its own services conveniently around
the clock through the internet.
		 3.8 Support to improvement in economic
performance and quality of life by
decentralizing infrastructural services
to all rural people.
		 3.9 Support to provincial town development
into more livable towns by managing
power systems for improved scenery.
		 3.10 Support to rural job creation through
the development of household, rural,
and community industries to add jobs
for locals, grow their income, and lower
migration to cities and towns.
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PEA performance
Performance analysis report

(MD&A)

Management Discussion and Analysis

PEA’s vision is to become a customer-centric
organization. This is to be achieved through valuing and
managing customer relationships to meet their needs
and bolster their satisfaction, and through improving its
caliber for delivering services with innovation and suitable
technological application. Below are the highlights of its
management and operation.
1.

Power system

		 Under its current and three-year investment
plans, PEA has formulated work plans to match the
projected power demand. Because of the severity
of energy and environmental crises, while national
development calls for energy as a cornerstone, PEA
must provide quality and efficient electrical power
services, while focusing on developing its power grids
to be strong, smart, and safe and represent PEA’s key
drivers toward smart grids. To this end, it advocates
clean energy consumption, reduction of carbon dioxide
emission, economical adjustment of power demand,
access to PEA services, and users’ satisfaction. In 2015,
PEA consistently implemented projects on power system
development under its present and future investment
plans, including:
		
1.1 Transmission system and substation
development project, 9th stage develops power systems
and adds power distribution stations that dispatch enough
and reliable power matching rising power demand

		
1.2 M a j o r c i t i e s p o w e r s y s t e m
development project, 1st stage fosters system security
and reliability, while minimizing problems and obstacles
to maintenance and safety
		
1.3 Agriculture electrification project, 2nd
stage extends the scope of power service to farm land,
joint plantation, and agricultural gardens in support of
farmers’ livelihoods and grassroots economic strength
		
1.4 New rural household electrification
project extends power zones for non-electrified
households to fulfill the government’s electrification
policy
		
1.5 R e m o t e r u r a l h o u s e h o l d
electrification project (RHEP) extends power zones
for remote households in support of the government’s
electrification policy
		
1.6 Distribution system dispatching
center improvement project upgrades the efficiency
and management of PEA’s main communication system
and integrates it with assorted systems, including outage
management systems, geographical information systems,
automatic meter reading, and supports distributed power
generation.
		
1.7 Smart Grid development project in
the municipality of Pattaya, Chon Buri, investigates
technologies, test designs and application, together
with assorted benefits under individual elements for
multiplication in other areas.
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2. ICT management

		 2.1 ICT infrastructure
			 PEA has improved its communication
system to accommodate needs, become stable, and
become more efficient and thus accommodate the drive
for its current and future strategies through the design,
procurement, and installation of the IP Core Network,
phase 1. In 2015, completed all installation nationwide.
		 2.2 Organizational performance
improvement
			 PEA has installation AMRs (Automatic
Meter Reading) for major customers consuming 30
kilowatts or more or those individual consumers of 100
kVA., including those residing in the three southernmost
border provinces for their confidence in accurate and
speedy meter reading and application of their own
consumption data to power management for maximum
efficiency. This would not only bolster the satisfaction
of and reputation for PEA’s services, but also prune
expenses for the reading of power meters and cut losses.
Two phases of such installation covering 80,000 AMRs
were planned, of which 60,000 were installed as planned
this year.
			 As for retail customers, PEA has
introduced a handheld-computer recording system
that works with GPS (Global Positioning System) and
GPRS (General Packet Radio Service). In 2015, it piloted
the recording system, equipped with power invoices
nationwide, which has lowered its expenses for compiling
electricity bills, yielded unit-recording accuracy, and
lowered customers’ complaints.

		 2.3 Support to PEA’s product and service
deliveries
			 Due to the nationwide extent of its
service, PEA’s core business deals with dispatching
electrical power, reaching numerous consumers and
service users. Out of this emerged a concept of the
relationship between PEA and its customers by relying
on the 1129 PEA Call Center to set service standards
and develop contact channels with them. Such is the
importance of efficient services, including inquiry about
fees, outstanding bills, complaints, recommendations,
and compliments, not to mention service provision,
notification ahead of power cuts, notification of power
bills, outages, and other information through SMS.
			 The 1129 PEA Call Center has undergone
continual development to serve stakeholders and
customers, evident in PEA’s successful, faster responses
to complaints and greater customers’ satisfaction. To
date, the call center’s primary aim is to centralize
contacts, provide fast and accurate news and information,
and enhance image and cordial relations among PEA,
customers, and the public.
			 As for handling applications/requests
for using electricity, improvement is achieved in the
integration of GIS (Geographical Information System)
data, PEA’s SAP (System Applications and Products),
OMS (Outage Management System), and link-ups of ID
information with the population registration database
of the Department of Local Administration, Ministry
of Interior. As a result, PEA’s data are accurate, with
minimum documents required for contacts. In short,
PEA’s one-touch service.
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3. Human resource management and

development

		 3.1 Manpower administration
			 As a customer-centric entity, PEA
added to PEA offices manpower needed for fixing power
disruptions, while enhancing the efficiency of work
procedures to lower SAIDI (System Average Interruption
Duration Index), improving power system credibility and
boosting customers’ satisfaction.
		 3.2 Organizational restructuring
			 Valuing organizational restructuring to
enable itself to handle current and future missions, PEA
reviews all units’ missions for suitability, transferring units
and missions, and upgrading units for greater suitability
and flexibility. The new structure was rolled out on
January 1, 2015.
		 3.3 Performance management
			 PEA manages its performance by
instituting a system for employee performance
assessment, defining standard procedures and indicators
for fairness and employee engagement. It has applied
performance management outcomes to compensation
payment, appointment, selection of high achievers, and
enrolling personnel for further training. Performance
management appraisal was piloted on the information
system in certain units to iron out problems before fullfledged expansion units in subsequent years.
		 3.4 B o l s t e r i n g s a t i s f a c t i o n a n d
engagement
			 To enable employees to enjoy working
together and consistently deliver quality performance
without creating conditions or filing grievances, PEA has
conducted an annual survey of employees’ satisfaction
and engagement so as to apply outcomes to the
improvement and strategy-planning for even greater

satisfaction and engagement, which will benefit its
performance and its customers.
		 3.5 Personnel promotion/development
			 Regarding personnel as vital drivers of
the organization toward its goals and vision of becoming
a sophisticated leading entity that is committed to
providing electrical power in an efficient, reliable way for
a sustainable quality of life, economy, and society, PEA
values their continuous development by devising a policy
of developing all employees in engineering disciplines,
in which PEA specializes, and in novel technologies like
Smart Grid and renewables, as well as the management,
development of the quality of life, and good governance.
The ultimate goal is to enhance and cultivate talents,
morality, work-life balance, and engagement to the
organization.
			 In 2015, PEA’s personnel policy focuses
on their development in the following aspects:
			 1) Capability building: To strive for
a high-performance organization
manned by quality personnel who
enjoy working and are committed
to it
			 2) Enhancing human capital: To
promote human capital
development for sustainable
organizational development.
			 PEA employs assorted development
methods focusing on continual learning and promoting
self-development. To this end, IDPs (Individual
Development Plans) are leveraged, starting from senior
to middle management, and in the future to junior
management and the rank and file. At the same time, it
focuses on developing specialists in engineering, including
power quality, reliability, system safeguarding and loss

PEA

Annual Report
2015

reduction. These will prove vital to further evolution of
PEA’s competitiveness. PEA also promotes the culture
of learning to make way for knowledge and experience
transfer through continual job learning and development,
including the development of the PEA Think Tank, and KM
Day. In addition, PEA enrolls its personnel in domestic
and international training courses, enhances their caliber
by granting master’s and doctoral degree scholarships
and presents technical papers at international forums to
apply such knowledge to organizational development
and accommodate future business changes and growth.
		 3.6 Promoting a learning culture
			 PEA values mechanisms to apply
employees’ potential for its optimal benefits. To this end,
it applies their knowledge and experience (the human
capital) to the development of work processes to further
its productivity, while promoting innovations inside PEA. It
values employees’ individual and organizational learning,
regarding learning as a pivotal PEA mission and holding
all executives and staff responsible for taking part in the
mission.
			 PEA currently defines the approach
to promoting the learning culture through knowledge
management, a key process that begins by surveying
essential knowledge of PEA through the knowledge audit
and landscape process. In other words, all relevant
factors are taken into consideration, including the voice
of customers, strategic challenges and advantages,
senior management’s policies, critical work plans, and
PEA’s special talents. It then compiles and groups
such knowledge in the forms of electronic files and
hard copies, and spreads it through coaching, training,
seminars, and PEA’s knowledge management information
system. PEA underwent knowledge management

assessment to determine existing levels and apply
outcomes to process reviews for even greater efficiency.
In addition, it set up the “PEA Think Tank” to enable
knowledge-sharing and critique in critical aspects of its
interest to integrate internal and third-party experts’
knowledge. That way, approaches for higher work
efficiency can emerge and find sustainable practice. Also,
it stages learning promotion activities in various formats,
including PEA KM Day, QC Competition, Innovation
Contest, Job Skill Contest, and the Outstanding PEA
Regional Office Contest. In 2015, PEA compiled 3,003
topics of knowledge from all its units (nationwide zones
and Headquarters units), with some 3,030 participating
employees in the knowledge management process.
Finally, PEA promoted learning exercises between itself
and third-party agencies and the public through the
appointment of a PEA learning center in the Northeast
(Nakhon Ratchasima), user visits, user seminars, PEA Call
Center, community education, technical conferences
and seminars with assorted agencies, including ASEAN
power authorities, development of a knowledge transfer
manual, and regular technical cooperation projects.
4. Material and supply management

		 4.1 Material and supply administration
			 This concerns procurement and
administration of materials and supplies for various
PEA offices’ use in a timely manner. In 2015, PEA
administered static-low moving materials and supplies by
compiling data on them to cut the number of materials
and supplies, which represents part of its operating cost
management.
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		 4.2 Logistics system and supply chain
development
			 This concerns a system for delivery
of materials and supplies, as well as warehouse
development, to cope with supply chain operation
through the development of supporting systems, namely
the improvement of the Warehouse Division by procuring
pallet-racking systems and electric forklifts, development
of modern warehouses by using RFID (Radio Frequency
Identification) and barcodes along with warehouse
management, development of load planning software,
and route-planning of material and supplies for greater
administration efficiency.
		 In 2015, PEA posted a 2.13 material and
supply turnover ratio, regarded as superior to the goal
(1.90).
5. Services

		 5.1 Power-related services
			 The core mission of PEA is to dispatch
and distribute power, while serving customers’ powerrelated needs. Four regions of service offices are in place
(namely the North, Northeast, Central, and South), each
one consisting of three “PEA regional offices” (for a total
of 12). Then there are 934 PEA customer service centers
and PEA offices in 74 provinces except for Bangkok
Metropolis, Nonthaburi, and Samut Prakan, which fall
under MEA’s responsibility.
			 Nationwide, PEA also set up 81 PEA
Shops, located in department stores, and launched PEA
Mobile Shops to serve customers in key communities, while
developing the 1129 PEA Call Center to provide automatic
information by phone, fax, and SMS to ensure that all
problems and complaints may be efficiently handled.

			 PEA focuses on serving its customers
with speed, efficiency, standards and quality. Continuous
quality improvement prevails, including the One-Touch
Service. Work processes are developed by applying
advanced technologies to efficiency improvement for
locating prospective new power users by way of PEA
Maps. As for improvement in fixing power disruptions,
PEA revised its OMS, GIS maps, and weather forecast data,
while operating the SCADA system, all of which speed
up the tracking of power disruption resolution. Also,
power bills have been improved and the barcode system
developed to accommodate payment through ATMs—an
additional payment option for the public. Data-filling in
the request system is now linked up with the population
database (part of the Department of Local Administration’s
information system) by using the Smart Card Reader, which
streamlines, cuts expenses, shortens service waiting time,
and speeds up responses to customers’ needs—all these
boost customers’ satisfaction.
			 As for online services, www.pea.co.th
website represents another communication channel
between PEA and its customers, not to mention PEA
e-Service, which is made up of PEA e-Pay and PEA
e-Invoice, designed to ease fee payment and verification.
Finally, customers can monitor PEA’s news and
announcements through:
			 Facebook: http://www.facebook.com/
Provincial.Electricity.Authority
			 Twitter: https://twitter.com/pea_thailand.
		 5.2 System construction and maintenance
service
			 This service includes station construction
and maintenance, power systems, transformers, and
electrical appliances. Completing the full spectrum of
services, this service represents essential activities for
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PEA’s power distribution process and directly contributes
to customers’ satisfaction. Five aspects are included:
construction, maintenance, appliance installation, testing,
and consultancy.
		 5.3 Electrical engineering service
			 This involves application of knowledge,
technology and advanced tools together with skilled
and experienced PEA personnel to provide engineering
and project management services to customers (public
and private) nationwide with guarantees of job quality,
speed, and fair pricing to cater to customers’ needs and
satisfaction. On offer are power system consultancy and
design, power system and power station construction,
system inspection, analysis, and maintenance, and
electrical appliance inspection.
		 5.4 Information and communication service
			 This service consists in fiber optic leasing
(dark fiber and bandwidth). The three key groups of
customers are made up of operators who expand their 3G
and 4G communication networks under government policy,
small power producers (SPPs) who seek to control, direct,
and monitor operation for power security and the security
group, including the Office of the Permanent Secretary for
Defence. On the whole, the use of PEA’s network represents
resource-sharing to do away with redundant investment.

Customer group

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Others
Total

		 5.5 Renewable-energy service
			 PEA’s current subsidiary (PEA ENCOM
International Co., Ltd.) was formed to engage in
domestic and international renewable-energy businesses
through investment with various entities to investigate
and develop renewable energy-resources, as well as
mentoring interested entities on energy-saving.
Non-financial performance analysis

In 2015, PEA distributed 3.86% more electrical power
than last year, exceeding the 3.25% goal (projected as of
October 16, 2015). The residential group consumed 5.92%
more because of this year’s warmer weather, caused by
global climate change. The commercial group’s growth rate
was satisfactory, driven by the momentum of the latter half
of the year, following the economic stimulus policy, which
drove consumption by 7-8.4% in contrast with 4-4.5% of the
first half. Notably, the tourism sector posted consistently
healthy growth, including related service businesses like hotels,
restaurants, retail sales, department stores, and transport.
As for industries, the growth rate equaled 1.95%,
driven by the momentum of key industries like automotive,
cement, and plastics. The obvious exception was the steel
industry (down by 10.63%), which suffered price disadvantages
in the world market, as seen in the table below.

Number of customers
Percentage of
total

89.91
8.35
0.19
1.55
100.00

Growth rate (%)

2.64
4.05
3.30
4.78
3.69

Sales units
Percentage of
total

23.47
24.04
49.47
3.02
100.00

Growth rate (%)

5.92
5.94
1.95
3.79
4.40
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		 To serve customers with speed, quality, and
sophistication and extend the scope of service while
catering to customers’ needs through various projects,
PEA dispatched power to 80,032 rural villages (99.97%
of nationwide villages) and 20.64 million households
(96.62% of nationwide households), which exceeded
the goals and responded to public policy to develop
infrastructure to upgrade the quality of life and raise
Thailand’s competitiveness.
		 PEA’s power system is made up of extensive
networks across Thailand, except for Bangkok Metropolis
and its periphery. Besides distributing electricity, PEA
purchases it from VSPPs joining its networks, particularly
solar PV rooftop and solar farm projects under the
government’s policy. Therefore, it needs to plan to
develop power systems under its responsibility for
its networks, which dispatch power and serve those
joining them efficiently, with security, and on a par with
international standards. Achieving this calls for ICT to
ease its management and control of power dispatch
under power system planning criteria, while PEA must
ensure its alignment with national development strategies
of the Power Development Plan under the 11th National
Economic and Social Development Plan period (20122016). In 2014, it laid down a plan to improve its power
systems to sustain renewables VSPPs so as to provide
relevant services. In addition, PEA ENCOM was set up
to engage in domestic and international renewableenergy businesses, joining investment by various entities
to investigate and develop renewables, and mentoring
interested entities on energy-saving.
		 Apart from these, PEA has developed power
distribution systems to continually enhance the quality
and reliability of the systems. As a result, the quality of

services has improved, including SAIFI (System Average
Interruption Frequency Index) in 2015 (5.84 Times /
Customer / Year), which fell by 0.62 Times / Customer
/ Year, and SAIDI (System Average Interruption Duration
Index) (185.48 Minutes / Customer / Year), which fell by
32.41 Minutes / Customer / Year from the previous year.
		 Thanks to PEA’s ICT management, in 2015 its
stakeholders showed 91.59% satisfaction compared with
overall ICT expectations against the 85% goal. Against
last year, this achievement was 2.11% down. Concerning
the application readiness of information, the satisfaction
equaled 91.75%, or 1.12% improvement over last year.
As for the quality of information (namely precision,
credibility, timeliness, safety, and confidentiality), their
satisfaction was 92.42%, down by 3.03% due to some
adjustment in the more detailed questionnaire.
		 Based on the 2011-2012 survey outcomes
of employee satisfaction and engagement, the two
elements were on a rise (at 4.19 and 4.39) but fell steadily
in 2013-2014 (to 4.14 and 3.91) because of changes in
tasks, satisfaction, and engagement factors, together with
survey formats, which changed from year to year. Still,
this very year saw more favorable employee engagement.
On the whole, employee satisfaction and engagement
are relatively high (at 4.31 and 4.40) probably because
employees have continually been promoted in both
aspects. PEA is therefore focusing on long-term employee
engagement enhancement through earnest development
of assorted work processes, specifically by drawing up
strategic plans for enhancing these qualities for 20152017 and the action plan in 2015 to frame the drive for
employees to adopt a positive work attitude and raise their
satisfaction with and engagement to PEA further year.
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		 Performance outcomes in personnel
development: PEA has consistently valued personnel
development, evident in its concrete development
plans for all employees. The number of development
hours for its employees and the development expenses
in 2015, compared with last, showed that despite less
development budget, PEA achieved the job more
efficiently. Besides, PEA is committed to nurturing
a learning organizational culture as well as the
development of engineering experts. In view of the
compiled knowledge topics and number of experts
produced in 2015 against last, both showed rises (as seen
in the table below), which reiterates that PEA is attentive
to and values the drive toward HPO (High Performance
Organization).

Criterion

Training expenses (million baht)
Training hours/person/year (hours)
Knowledge compiled (topics)
Production of engineering experts (persons)

Recognizing the value of power distribution
service, PEA has developed its customer service with
speed, quality, and sophistication, while focusing on
customer centricity through the application of modern
technologies to meet customers’ needs and generate
satisfaction with its quality and services. Based on a
satisfaction survey of all PEA customers nationwide, in
2015 average satisfaction level was about 84.31%, against
83.29% last year—a 1.02% improvement.
Still, to accommodate global competition,
emerging technological change, global climate change,
the people sector’s participation, energy security issues,
and promotion of renewable energy, PEA relentlessly
manages and develops with a determination to drive
all aspects toward an entity with stability, sophistication,
and sustainable growth.
2014

2015

% rise / (drop)

259
16
64
507

243
29
3,003
594

(6.18)
81.25
4,592.19
17.16
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Financial analysis
Based on PEA’s performance in 2015, it posted
Baht 21,072 million in net profit. Its consolidated revenue
amounted to Baht 465,807 million, a 0.17% rise (Baht 795
million) from previous year. The bulk of the revenue
97% (Baht 451,476 million) came from distributed
electricity, a 0.19% rise (Baht 842 million). Expenditure
amounted to Baht 444,734 million, a 0.03% rise (Baht
120 million). Most of this (Baht 388,455 million) was for
electricity purchase, a 0.76% drop (Baht 2,971 million)
from 2014.
Assets totaled Baht 366,977 million, a 5.32% rise
(Baht 18,551 million), made up of current assets of Baht
99,384 million and non-current assets of Baht 267,592
million. Liabilities totaled Baht 227,541 million, a 5.21%
rise (Baht 11,267 million), made up of current liabilities
of Baht 61,962 million and non-current liabilities of
Baht 165,579 million. Finally, equity amounted to Baht
139,436 million, a 5.51% rise (Baht 7,283 million) from
last year.
PEA borrowed Baht 10,000 million from domestic
sources for investment in assorted plans/projects to
meet rising power demand and cut losses in power
systems, while maintaining its surroundings and attractive

landscape as called for by government policy. To this
end, it specified that loans from domestic sources should
be in the Baht denomination through bond issuance for
the most part, which resulted in its foreign debts totaling
Baht 749 million (0.89%) and domestic debts totaling
Baht 83,534 million (99.11%) as of year-end 2015.
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Highlights

Description

Sales of Electricity Energy (Million Baht)
Other Operating Revenues (Million Baht)
Operating Expenses (Million Baht)
Income from Operations (Million Baht)
Capital Expenditures (Million Baht)
Loans (Million Baht)
Total Assets (Million Baht)
Number of Customers
Total Sales of Electricity (Million kWh)
Average Customer Consumption (kWh)
Average Price of Electricity (Baht/kWh)
Total Maximum Demand (MW)
Total Electric Energy (Million kWh)
- Purchased Power (Million kWh)
- PEA Generation (Million kWh)
Transmission Lines (Circuit-km)
- H.V.Distribution Lines (Circuit-km)
- L.V.Distribution Lines (Circuit-km)
Number of PEA Offices
Number of PEA Employees
Total Villages
Number of Electrified Villages
% of Electrified Villages

2015

2014

Increase (Decrease)
2015-2014

Amount

%

451,476
12,232
441,139
22,569
(37,230)
84,283
366,977
18,171,025
123,210
6,780.57
3.75
18,9371

450,634
12,427
441,152
21,879
(27,022)
82,254
348,164
17,678,603
118,632
6,710.48
3.89
18,0302

842
(195)
(12)
660
(10,076)
2,029
18,551
492,422
4,578
70.09
(0.14)
907

0.19
(1.57)
(0.003)
3.01
(37.11)
2.47
5.32
2.79
3.86
1.04
(3.60)
5.03

130,294
91
11,547
299,865
460,721
933
29,093
80,0563
80,032
99.97

125,380
104
11,414
296,809
442,348
933
28,109
76,138
76,121
99.98

4,914
(13)
133
3,056
18,373
0.00
984
3,918
3,911
(0.01)

3.92
(12.50)
1.17
1.03
4.15
0.00
3.50
5.15
5.14
(0.01)

Remark
1
Peak load in April 2015 (Coincident Demand)
2
Peak load In April 2014 (Coincident Demand)
3
Information from Division of registration technology development and administration, The bureau of registration
administration, Department of provincial administration, Ministry of interior
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The customers

Comparison of Customers
Comparison of Customers

Residential (<150 kWh)
Residential (>150 kWh)
Small General Service
Medium General Service
Large General Service
Specific Business
Government and
Non-profit Organization
Agriculture Pumping
Temporary
Stand by Rate
Free of charge
Total
Increase (%)
Index (2011 = 100%)

(Customer)
2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

10,028,560
6,310,768
1,463,655
68,754
6,111
11,622
1,239

10,051,293
5,868,536
1,408,156
65,360
5,836
10,714
1,385

10,003,237
5,465,774
1,353,585
62,283
5,533
9,969
1,416

9,979,537
5,027,792
1,297,345
57,313
5,170
9,275
1,019

9,813,521
4,712,540
1,118,376
43,152
4,619
8,303
128,661

4,416
275,846
51
3
18,171,025

4,641
262,631
48
3
17,678,603

4,809
250,843
41
3
17,157,493

4,208
219,075
32
3
16,600,769

3,752
188,958
33
3
16,021,918

2.79
113.41

3.04
110.34

3.35
107.09

3.61
103.61

2.96
100.00

Note:
Since October 2012, the government sectors were classified as small general service, medium general service, and large
general service.
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Energy sales

Comparison of Energy Sales
Comparison of Customers

Residential (<150 kWh)
Residential (>150 kWh)
Small General Service
Medium General Service
Large General Service
Specific Business
Government and
Non-profit Organization
Agriculture Pumping
Temporary
Stand by Rate
Interruptible rate
Free of Charge
Total
Increase (%)
Index (2011 = 100%)

(Million KWh)
2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

8,269
20,649
12,033
19,988
52,555
3,876
70

8,291
19,012
11,373
19,214
51,617
3,636
56

8,159
18,078
10,987
18,580
50,167
3,585
54

8,339
16,711
9,804
16,757
48,600
3,420
2,749

8,179
14,496
8,802
15,622
44,631
3,020
3,595

387
990
172
1,945
2,276
123,210

414
982
141
1,761
2,135
118,632

354
950
52
1,641
2,003
114,609

377
871
586
1,679
1,834
111,726

297
799
69
1,618
1,821
102,947

3.86
119.68

3.51
115.24

2.58
111.33

8.53
108.53

2.18
100.00
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Electric energy generated and purchased

Comparison of energy generated, purchased (Million kWh), and Demand (MW)
Supplying Agency

Generated by PEA
Purchased from EGAT1
Purchased from DEDE2
Purchased from VSPP3
Purchased from Solar
rooftop
Total
Increase (%)
Index (2011 = 100%)
Generated by PEA
Remark

Energy
Demand
Energy
Demand
Energy
Demand
Energy
Demand
Energy
Demand
Energy
Demand
Energy
Demand
Energy
Demand

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

91
10
124,376
18,597
70
14
5,791
317
57
130,385
18,937
3.91
5.03
120.33
116.84

104
15
120,194
17,724
101
14
5,077
277
8
125,484
18,030
3.88
2.59
115.81
111.24

100
15
116,795
17,294
99
14
3,801
252
120,796
17,574
1.73
3.37
111.48
108.43

95
13
116,025
16,749
102
14
2,516
225
118,739
17,001
9.58
4.89
109.58
104.89

112
15
106,393
15,996
110
14
1,740
183
108,355
16,208
0.55
10.69
100.00
100.00

Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand
Department of Alternative Energy Development and Efficiency, Ministry of Energy
3
Very Small Power Producer
1
2
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Electric energy for lighting, business and industry

		
Comparison of Electric Energy Consumption

(Million kWh)
Purpose of Consumption

Lighting
Business and Industry
Total
Increase (%)
Index (2011 =100%)
Year

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

30,365
90,569

28,754
87,743

27,595
85,011

29,047
80,845

27,365
73,761

120,934

116,497

112,606

109,892

101,126

3.81
119.59

3.46
115.20

2.47
111.35

8.67
108.67

0.37
100.00

Lighting
M.kWh

27,365
29,047
27,595
28,754
30,365

Business and Industry
%

27.06
26.43
24.51
24.68
26.06

M.kWh

73,761
80,845
85,011
87,743
90,569

%

72.94
73.57
75.49
75.32
77.74

Total
M.kWh

101,126
109,892
112,606
116,497
120,933

%

100
100
100
100
100

71

72

PEA

Annual Report
2 01 5

Personnel

Number of Employees by Education Level
Unit : Person
Qualification

University Graduation
Associate Degree
Vocational Certificate
Other
Total
Increase (Decrease) (%)
Index (2011 = 100%)

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

8,167
14,296
5,237
1,393
29,093
3.50
104.71

8,020
13,177
5,372
1,540
28,109
1.14
101.17

8,016
12,608
5,501
1,667
27,792
(0.96)
100.03

7,836
12,507
5,823
1,894
28,060
0.99
100.99

7,634
11,803
6,171
2,176
27,784
(0.12)
100.00
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Socio-environmental responsibility
It was on November 4, 2015, that PEA announced
its social and environmental responsibility policy through
the application of the ISO 26000 social responsibility
standard to the improvement of its move toward an entity
with sustainable social responsibility and development
under the PEA Strategic Plan 2014-2023 (Revision 1, 2015).
In 2015, PEA promoted the development of community
energy; development of the quality of life and
conscientious, safe energy consumption; conservation,
rehabilitation and conscientious resource consumption;
and support to society and social service under 7 core
subjects.
1.

Organizational governance

		 In 2015, PEA commissioned a third-party
corporate governance assessment against international
yardsticks, including the Organization for Economic
Co-operation and Development (OECD) Guidelines on
Corporate Governance of State-Owned Enterprises 2005
and that of SEPO (State Enterprise Policy Office). A
summary of the assessment outcomes was that PEA’s
corporate governance is of a good standard. Out of
such outcomes emerged a development approach for
PEA’s corporate governance toward a higher standard,
which resulted in a revision of the PEA corporate
governance policy and the formulation of the corporate
governance master plan. In response to such outcomes,
PEA announced an urgent Excellence in Governance
Policy and an Anti-Corruption Policy for compliance
by the board, executives, and staff, together with a
transparency policy supported by activities/projects,
including the declaration of the “Anti-corruption intention
announcement to create PEA Anti-corruption awareness”
intention and the “Integrity and transparency offices
project”, which radiated throughout the organization.

2. Human rights

		 In managing its business, PEA ensures that it
engages in no violation of human rights, stays vigilant and
conforms to international standards, respects employees’
right to state their opinions, and listens to stakeholders’
views, not to mention continually developing human
capital and intellectual capital. Valuing its personnel as
drivers of the organization toward its goals and vision, PEA
analyzed the needs to develop its personnel based on
strategic challenges, core competencies, organization’s
policies, voice of customers, and its core values. PEA
stresses that its personnel should be alert for change,
while developing physically and mentally together for a
happy workplace. In 2015, the number of training hours
per person averaged 30.28 man-hours.
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3. Labor practices

		 In running its business in line with the zero
accident approach, PEA stresses that its personnel pay
due attention to safety and occupational health, with a
panel in charge of keeping PEA in compliance with laws,
standards, and regulations. PEA also devised a master
plan for public disaster prevention and mitigation to
handle abnormal situations promptly and minimize
potential losses. PEA houses a unit that centralizes the
management of safety and occupational health in all
four regions, 12 zones, and headquarters, which looks
after safety and occupational health matters under the
jurisdiction of PEA offices. This yields management
flexibility for repair work and procurement of safety gear
and operating vehicles and coordination with relevant
agencies.
4. The environment

		 Before embarking on power system
construction, PEA prepares EIA (Environmental Impact
Assessment), IEE (Initial Environmental Evaluation) reports
and environmental information checklists as needed
by individual projects. Explanation and clarification are
standard practices, as well as dialogues with communities
and relevant agencies. In the course of power system
construction, PEA takes environmental preventive
and remedial measures together with local laws,
while proceeding with construction work in an orderly
manner without creating undue impacts on surrounding
communities. After construction, PEA’s measures track
environmental parameter inspection, while it stages
public relations activities and restores the ecology and
the environment through “CSR Project after Process”.

5. Fair operating practices

		 PEA commands a behavioral commitment to
morality and ethics, adherence to national interests and
determination to do the right thing. Since it recognizes
that its core products and services may affect customers,
PEA takes preventive measures to provide proper
understanding about safe consumption of electricity,
as seen in the “Safe Community Using PEA Electricity
Project”, a continuing project established in 2014 to
cultivate knowledge about safe, economical, and efficient
use of electricity together with community participation
in power system stewardship. Another project “PEA
Cares for Life” educates heads of government agencies,
government officials, local administration entities,
community leaders, teachers, students, and the public
on PEA’s power distribution system; proper, safe,
and economical power consumption; first aid for the
electrocuted; and emergency notification to prevent
power disruptions in service areas nationwide. PEA has
also developed an emergency operating manual for all
units potentially facing emergencies.
6. Consumer issues

		 Based on a recent satisfaction survey among
1,200 participants of the “PEA Cares for Life Project”,
most (84.60%) were satisfied with the benefits derived
from project participation, 83.80% could apply the
knowledge learned to their everyday life and the overall
satisfaction with how PEA conducted the project was
82.40%. PEA also has a customer opinion-sharing process
incorporating current and past customers, competitors’
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customers and potential ones, the outcomes of which
translate into customers’ needs and expectations for
development of activities, plans, and projects to address
the needs of individual groups. Online social media and
web technology represent another feedback channel for
PEA’s products and services, namely the 1129 PEA Call
Center, phone feedback monitoring, queue management
system, smile box, and key account management (KAM).
7. Community involvement and

development

		 To PEA, a “community” means a group of
local residents of PEA’s power distribution areas that derive
benefits or impacts from PEA’s business, including PEA’s
CSR partner network associates. In 2015, PEA focused on
communities or areas around its offices, power stations,
and its power network. Based on the communities’
opinion surveys and PEA’s core competencies, activities
and work plans supporting community strengthening
were conceived. In addition, based on the sufficiency
economy philosophy, PEA’s “Towards Sustainable CSR
Policy” strives for sustainable growth together with
communities, society, the environment and the national
economy. At the same time, it defines guidelines for
socio-environmental activities and work plans to foster
cordial relations with provincial and rural communities
by supporting communities’ income generation and
expense reduction while boosting the quality of life and
preserving the surroundings.

PEA has since 2009 developed a stand-alone
socio-environmental annual report separately from
the PEA Annual Report, as required by the assessment
criteria for the roles of state enterprises on CG (Corporate
Governance) and CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) of
State Enterprise Policy Office. Focusing on performance
assessment and benefits for stakeholders, the Board,
executives, staff, communities, customers, and the
public, this report forms part of state enterprises’ social
responsibility. In 2015, in preparing the report, PEA relied
on the sustainability reporting guidelines & electric utility
sector supplement of GRI (Global Reporting Initiative), G4
version, as the guidelines for information disclosure and
the key content assessment process under GRI so as to
reflect factors dictating PEA’s business.
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PEA Board’s report
Report of the Audit Committee

PEA’s Audit Committee is made up of three directors appointed by the PEA Board of Directors:
1. Mr. Prasit
Suebchana		Chairman
2. Mr. Danucha Pichayanan		Member
3. Mr. Yodpoj Wongrakmit		Member.
The director, Office of Internal Audit, served as secretary to the committee.
The committee performed the Board-assigned duties under the guidelines of the operating manual of state
enterprise audit committees (amended 2012), State Enterprise Policy Office (SEPO), Ministry of Finance, and PEA
Regulation on Audit Committee of 2013. Under these policies, PEA conforms to the corporate governance principles,
manages risks affecting the organization, and conducts efficient, effective internal audit. Emphasis is on the conduct
of executives and staff to ensure morality, transparency, and compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and
requirements. The Office of Internal Audit serves as an independent unit reporting to this committee, with proactive
audit advocated, while the internal auditors are trained on international-standard competencies, and due technology
applied to audit work.
This year, the committee called a total of 12 meetings, with the management, internal auditor, and external
auditor (Office of the Auditor General of Thailand) in attendance as required. This practice focused on fostering good
corporate governance. Each time, significant outcomes of the meeting were reported to the Board. Below are the
highlights of its performance under its scope of responsibility:
1. With the management, internal auditor, and external auditor (Office of the Auditor General of Thailand),
reviewed monthly, quarterly, and annual financial statements of PEA and its subsidiaries together with their performance
outcomes. Significant issues were deliberated and helpful views given to ensure that PEA’s and its subsidiaries’
financial reports were accurately and essentially prepared, credible, with adequate information disclosure, and in
line with generally accepted accounting principles.
2. Reviewed risk management practices and internal control by scrutinizing policies, work plans, and
guidelines for PEA’s risk management at the organizational level to ensure earnest implementation of significant risk
management plans and adequate, suitable internal control.
3. Reviewed good governance practices by reviewing and driving PEA’s business in compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations, procedures, Cabinet resolutions, announcements, directives, and others. The
key consideration is that its actions must be moral, transparent, free of conflicts of interest or fraud, auditable, and
must focus on compliance with corporate governance and best practices to constantly grow the awareness of all
employees, while promoting PEA’s responsibility for society and the environment.
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4. Supervised and developed the Office of Internal Audit to ensure independence in line with the annual

audit plan, and monitored significant issues. Also, approved PEA’s regulations on the charter of the Office of Internal
Audit of 2015; three-year (2016-2018) audit plan; 2016 audit plan; internal audit manual; vision and mission; suitability
of resources; assessed the performance of the office; promoted self-development of internal audit personnel
for certificates of professional auditors; and supported the development of an anti-corruption policy. The office
announced its anti-corruption intention on December 9, 2015, for compliance by all.
		 In addition, the committee encouraged third-party quality assessment by experts that are duly
qualified and independent, and encouraged regularly audits for at least every five years. This year, PEA hired
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd. as its consultant for quality assessment and internal-audit work so as to improve
and develop the performance of the office in harmony with the International Standards for the Professional Practice
of Internal Auditing.
5. Consulted the external auditor (Office of the Auditor General of Thailand) in the absence of the management
on the scope, approach, and performance outcomes of the external auditor to promote good coordination and
minimize work redundancy. This year’s audit fees came to Baht 2 million.
6. Maintained the quality of the committee’s tasks by conducting self-assessment in line with best practices
defined by SEPO, Ministry of Finance. This year, its performance was graded as best practice (level 4). The committee’s
performance outcomes were reported to the PEA Board of Directors, Ministry of Interior, and Ministry of Finance.
In the opinion of the Audit Committee, this year, PEA boasted adequate risk management and internal
control; prepared essentially accurate financial reports under generally accepted accounting practices; selected
a sensible accounting policy; adequately disclosed information; and allowed independent internal audit in line
with the international internal-audit professional standards; and, finally, duly complied with applicable laws, rules,
regulations, and requirements, all in line with the corporate governance policy and principles. These actions have
enabled PEA’s performance to achieve its goals. The Audit Committee expressed its views and recommendations
to the management in an independent and straightforward manner with a focus on the optimal benefits of PEA and
Thailand.

				

(Mr. Prasit Suebchana)

				

Chairman, Audit Committee
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Report of the risk management committee
PEA’s main mission is to supply power services and engage in downstream businesses to meet customers’
needs and create satisfaction with PEA’s quality and services through continuous organizational development and
socio-environmental responsibility.
With its management processes designed to fulfill this mission, PEA adheres to ERM (Enterprise Risk
Management) to enhance its competencies and capability for dealing with uncertainty and timely responses to risks
for positive outcomes to its current and future tasks.
This year, PEA amended its risk management policy in line with its operation, implementing it on March 3,
2015. To this end, the Risk Management Committee endorsed two enterprise risk management plans:
1. Industrial and household customer retention plan
2. A plan to sustain the security of distribution and continuity management system for power services and
distribution.
Both plans contain control measures for achieving acceptable risk management against PEA’s goals. The
committee also stressed that all PEA units recognize the criticality of customers receiving electrical power services
that are constantly convenient and thorough in all areas. To this end, actions have been speeded up under projects
to expand or maintain the nationwide power distribution system for PEA’s uninterrupted businesses under any
circumstances. It also provided comments on the distribution systems of Special Economic Zones (SEZs) under
the jurisdiction of Regional Offices 1 and 2 (Northeast), as well as Regional Offices 2 and 3 (Central), together with
other regions, to ensure the readiness of local PEA units in action plans and assorted actions to sustain timely power
distribution in SEZs.
In addition, the committee communicated PEA’s risk management approach to employees and assigned a
policy for all to adhere to the Sufficiency Economy Philosophy, while conducting their businesses with integrity and
transparency to form part of the drive against corruption.
The committee is convinced that all employees’ support and participation in conforming to internal control
measures that affect risk management will raise the likelihood of success and lower obstacles as well as uncertainty
affecting PEA’s overall performance so that PEA may become a leading entity and ultimately The Electricity Utility
of the Future.

				

				

(Mr. Boonchai Sowanwanichakul)

Chairman, PEA Risk Management Committee
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Auditor’s report
To the Board of Directors of the Provincial Electricity Authority

The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand has audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements
of the Provincial Electricity Authority and its subsidiary, and separate financial statements of the Provincial Electricity
Authority, which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at December 31, 2015,
and the consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income, the consolidated and separate statements
of changes in equity and the consolidated and separate statements in cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated and separate
financial statements in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
and separate financial statements based on the audit. The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand conducted the
audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that the Office of the Auditor General
of Thailand comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated and separate financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated and separate financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements.
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The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand believes that the audit evidence the Office of the Auditor
General of Thailand has obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the Office of the Auditor General
of Thailand’s audit opinion.
Opinion

In the Office of The Auditor General of Thailand’s opinion, the above mentioned consolidated and separate
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Provincial Electricity
Authority and its subsidiary, and separate financial position of the Provincial Electricity Authority, respectively, as at
December 31, 2015, and their consolidated and separate financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards

				

Yupin Chalanonniwat

				

(Ms. Yupin Chalanonniwat)

				

Deputy Auditor General

				

Patchara Larpluechai

				

(Mrs. Patchara Larpluechai)

				

Director of Financial Audit Office No. 13

Office of the Auditor General of Thailand
March 22, 2016
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Statements Of Financial Position
THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
As At December 31, 2015
Unit: Baht
Consolidated financial statements
Notes
Assets

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

Jan. 1, 2014

(Restated)

(Restated)

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
4.1 5.1
4,437,899,027
10,940,091,492
Current investments
5.2
11,047,000,000
Trade accounts receivable
4.2 5.3
33,637,524,486
33,363,636,121
Materials and supplies
4.3 5.4
2,479,507,884
2,609,586,238
Special-purpose deposits at financial
		institutions
4.4 5.5
34,854,819,163
32,267,560,045
Accrued revenues
5.6
8,842,446,113
3,765,778,714
Undue input VAT
2,219,514,039
2,127,161,959
Advance payments to suppliers
1,580,705,656
1,616,116,172
Other current assets
5.7
580,850,942
1,213,447,337
			 Total Current Assets
99,680,267,310
87,903,378,078
Non-current Assets
Investments in associates
4.5 5.8
241,706,467
195,092,291
Investment property
4.7 5.10
715,013,852
336,887,498
Property, plant and equipment
4.8 5.11
232,667,595,872 225,660,722,594
Constructions in progress
4.9 5.12
32,593,887,673
32,324,476,360
Intangible assets
4.10 5.13
1,036,758,458
1,923,626,565
Other non-current assets
5.14
108,208,185
74,550,839
			 Total Non-current Assets
267,363,170,507 260,515,356,147
Total Assets
367,043,437,817 348,418,734,225
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

3,078,465,100
31,365,038,600
2,870,330,999
29,243,070,063
4,484,878,207
1,801,919,384
1,512,612,016
1,317,440,898
75,673,755,267
345,100,359
219,705,876,881
29,532,559,615
2,702,639,731
87,525,765
252,373,702,351
328,047,457,618
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Statements Of Financial Position
THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
As At December 31, 2015
Unit: Baht
Consolidated financial statements
Notes

Dec. 31, 2015

Liabilities and Equity

Current Liabilities
Trade accounts payable
5.15
38,656,409,644
Current portion of long-term loans
4.11 4.12 5.16 7
7,911,662,071
Current portion of finance lease liabilities
5.17
981,968,304
Other payables
543,571,356
Accrued interest payable on loans
828,321,920
Accrued remittance to the Ministry of Finance
5.18
6,672,000,000
Advance received per contract
1,416,104,473
Deposits payable
5.19
701,196,409
Accrued expenses
3,492,177,031
Other current liabilities
5.20
775,387,717
			 Total Current Liabilities
61,978,798,925
Non-current Liabilites
Long-term loans
4.11 4.12 5.16 7
76,370,942,832
Long-term provisions
4.13 5.21
192,209,799
Construction obligations
5.22
9,445,293,362
Finance lease liabilities
5.17
427,048,106
Deferred revenues
4.14 5.23
43,595,839,529
Electricity usage guarantee
4.15 5.24
23,654,542,773
Sales and service guarantee
764,763,125
Employee gratuity fund
4.16 5.25
7,082,282
Employee benefit obligations
4.17 5.26
11,030,895,417
Other non-current liabilities
93,042,182
			 Total Non-current Liabilities
165,581,659,407
Total Liabilities
227,560,458,332
Equity
Initial capital
87,003,887
Constributions from the government
4,802,500,915
Unappropriated retained earnings
134,593,474,683
			 Total Equity
139,482,979,485
Total Liabilities and Equity
367,043,437,817
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Dec. 31, 2014

Jan. 1, 2014

(Restated)

(Restated)

37,860,786,458
7,939,965,067
973,947,242
543,916,827
823,989,819
5,296,000,000
1,184,645,838
651,177,436
2,960,337,925
309,470,256
58,544,236,868

32,334,507,027
7,395,857,717
1,097,804,259
338,151,039
809,261,091
8,561,778,000
1,056,938,839
631,544,628
3,224,951,479
817,256,530
56,268,050,609

74,313,972,897
2,868,588
9,095,110,805
1,030,834,765
39,954,411,470
22,025,643,420
733,414,868
13,265,202
10,567,490,885
157,737,012,900
216,281,249,768

71,989,407,090
8,069,616
8,990,892,743
1,588,119,723
36,281,323,661
20,315,665,562
483,134,381
16,895,856
9,995,858,597
149,669,367,229
205,937,417,838

87,003,887
4,802,500,915
127,247,979,655
132,137,484,457
348,418,734,225

87,003,887
4,802,500,915
117,220,534,978
122,110,039,780
328,047,457,618
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Statements Of Financial Position
THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
As At December 31, 2015
Separate financial statements
Notes
Assets

Dec. 31, 2015

Unit: Baht

Dec. 31, 2014

Jan. 1, 2014

(Restated)

(Restated)

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
4.1 5.1
4,063,721,026 10,699,759,898
2,770,464,712
Short-term investments
5.2
11,047,000,000
Trade accounts receivable
4.2 5.3
33,636,753,788 33,362,580,753 31,364,675,999
Materials and supplies
4.3 5.4
2,475,909,039
2,609,586,238
2,870,330,999
Special-purpose deposits at financial
		institutions
4.4 5.5
34,854,819,163 32,267,560,045 29,243,070,063
Accrued revenues
5.6
8,842,201,419
3,765,455,705
4,486,300,207
Undue input VAT
2,219,497,193
2,127,099,623
1,801,903,986
Advance payments to suppliers
1,580,705,656
1,616,116,172
1,512,612,016
Other current assets
5.7
663,749,052
1,213,087,568
1,316,279,432
			 Total Current Assets
99,384,356,336 87,661,246,002 75,365,637,414
Non-current Assets
Investments in subsidiary
4.6 5.9
473,283,750
447,375,000
344,875,000
Investment property
4.7 5.10
715,013,852
336,887,498
345,100,359
Property, plant and equipment
4.8 5.11
232,665,233,118 225,657,899,909 219,705,506,143
Constructions in progress
4.9 5.12
32,593,887,673 32,324,476,360 29,532,559,615
Intangible assets
4.10 5.13
1,036,699,249
1,923,593,810
2,702,597,575
Other non-current assets
5.14
108,208,185
74,550,839
87,479,059
			 Total Non-current Assets
267,592,325,827 260,764,783,416 252,718,117,751
Total Assets
366,976,682,163 348,426,029,418 328,083,755,165
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements Of Financial Position
THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
As At December 31, 2015
Separate financial statements
Notes

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

Jan. 1, 2014

(Restated)

(Restated)

38,640,293,663
7,911,662,071
981,303,446
543,580,940
828,321,920
6,672,000,000
1,416,104,473
701,196,409
3,491,747,938
775,309,992
61,961,520,852

37,859,460,023
7,939,965,067
973,325,374
543,991,649
823,989,819
5,296,000,000
1,184,645,838
651,177,436
2,957,242,418
309,414,568
58,539,212,192

32,334,216,629
7,395,857,717
1,097,804,259
338,151,039
809,261,091
8,561,778,000
1,056,938,839
631,544,628
3,224,410,919
817,052,342
56,267,015,463

76,370,942,832
192,209,799
9,445,293,362
425,610,933
43,595,839,529
23,654,542,773
764,403,350
7,082,282
11,030,227,987
93,042,182
165,579,195,029
227,540,715,881

74,313,972,897
2,868,588
9,095,110,805
1,028,793,954
39,954,411,470
22,025,643,420
733,055,093
13,265,202
10,567,112,186
157,734,233,615
216,273,445,807

71,989,407,090
8,069,616
8,990,892,743
1,588,119,723
36,281,323,661
20,315,665,562
482,848,806
16,895,856
9,995,609,735
149,668,832,792
205,935,848,255

87,003,887
4,802,500,915
134,546,461,480
139,435,966,282
366,976,682,163

87,003,887
4,802,500,915
127,263,078,809
132,152,583,611
348,426,029,418

87,003,887
4,802,500,915
117,258,402,108
122,147,906,910
328,083,755,165

Liabilities and Equity

Current Liabilities
Trade accounts payable
5.15
Current portion of long-term loans
4.11 4.12 5.16 7
Current portion of finance lease liabilities
5.17
Other payables
Accrued interest payable on loans
Accrued remittance to the Ministry of Finance
5.18
Advance received per contract
Deposits payable
5.19
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
5.20
			 Total Current Liabilities
Non-current Liabilites
Long-term loans
4.11 4.12 5.16 7
Long-term provisions
4.13 5.21
Construction obligations
5.22
Finance lease liabilities
5.17
Deferred revenues
4.14 5.23
Electricity usage guarantee
4.15 5.24
Sales and service guarantee
Employee gratuity fund
4.16 5.25
Employee benefit obligations
4.17 5.26
Other non-current liabilities
		 Total Non-current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
Initial capital
Constributions from the government
Unappropriated retained earnings
		 Total Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity

Unit: Baht

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements Of Comprehensive Income
THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
For The Year Ended December 31, 2015

Unit: Baht

Consolidated financial statements
Notes

Revenues
Operating Revenues
		 Sales of electricity energy
		 Other operating revenues
			Total Operating Revenues
Other revenues
				 Total Revenues
Expenses
Operating Expenses
		 Cost of electricity
		Employee compensations
		 Employee benefit expenses
		Executive remuneration
		 Preventive, repair and maintenance, and
			construction expenses
		 Depreciation and amortization expenses
		 Other operating expenses
			Total operating expenses
Other expenses
Financial costs
				 Total Expenses
Share of profit of associates
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Actuarial loss on post-employment benefit plan
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the years

4.19

4.20 5.27

4.21

5.28
4.17 5.26

2015

2014

451,476,153,871
12,248,231,622
463,724,385,493
2,103,920,773
465,828,306,266

450,633,827,020
12,435,431,073
463,069,258,093
1,954,550,895
465,023,808,988

388,143,570,850
21,480,065,027
892,043,770
77,456,073

391,110,303,024
20,076,644,438
836,395,584
128,558,325

4,265,998,991
18,757,361,290
7,548,369,344
441,164,865,345
282,122,729
3,313,462,786
444,760,450,860
66,579,176
21,134,434,582

4,180,433,239
17,420,056,011
7,418,809,104
441,171,199,725
54,021,305
3,408,907,918
444,634,128,948
30,092,291
20,419,772,331

(141,939,554)
20,992,495,028

(124,105,654)
20,295,666,677

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements Of Comprehensive Income
THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
For The Year Ended December 31, 2015

Unit: Baht

Separate financial statements
Notes

Revenues
Operating Revenues
		 Sales of electricity energy
		 Other operating revenues
			Total Operating Revenues
Other revenues
				 Total Revenues
Expenses
Operating Expenses
		 Cost of electricity
		Employee compensations
		 Employee benefit expenses
		Executive remuneration
		 Preventive, repair and maintenance, and
			construction expenses
		 Depreciation and amortization expenses
		 Other operating expenses
			Total operating expenses
Other expenses
Financial costs
				 Total Expenses
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Actuarial loss on post-employment benefit plan
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the years

4.19

4.20 5.27

4.21
5.28
4.17 5.26

2015

2014

451,476,153,871
12,231,535,871
463,707,689,742
2,099,109,105
465,806,798,847

450,633,827,020
12,427,137,765
463,060,964,785
1,950,936,141
465,011,900,926

388,143,570,850
21,473,125,594
891,755,039
76,048,348

391,110,303,024
20,069,646,777
836,265,746
127,086,255

4,266,156,316
18,756,575,299
7,531,833,656
441,139,065,102
282,122,729
3,313,288,791
444,734,476,622
21,072,322,225

4,182,070,061
17,419,364,589
7,407,416,881
441,152,153,333
54,021,305
3,408,721,933
444,614,896,571
20,397,004,355

(141,939,554)
20,930,382,671

(124,105,654)
20,272,898,701

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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5.18
5.18

5.18

5.18

5.18
5.18

5.18

3

Notes

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Balance as at January 1, 2014, before adjustment
Effect from the restatement
Balance as at January 1, 2014, after adjustment
Accumulated amount from
		 Remittance to the Ministry of Finance for the year 2013 (addition)
Balance after adjustment
Interim remittance to the Ministry of Finance from net profit for the year 2014
Reserve for remittance to the Ministry of Finance from net profit for the year 2014
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 2014
Balance as at December 31, 2014
Accumulated amount from
		 Remittance to the Ministry of Finance for the year 2014 (addition)
Balance after adjustment
Interim remittance to the Ministry of Finance from net profit for the year 2015
Remittance to the Ministry of Finance from approximate profit for the year 2015
		 (addition)
Reserve for remittance to the Ministry of Finance from net profit for the year 2015
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 2015
Balance as at December 31, 2015

THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
For The Year Ended December 31, 2015

Statements Of Changes In Equity

4,889,504,802

4,889,504,802
-

4,889,504,802
4,889,504,802

4,889,504,802
4,889,504,802

(3,000,000,000)
(6,672,000,000)
20,992,495,028
134,593,474,683

(3,000,000)
127,244,979,655
(3,972,000,000)

(21,222,000)
117,199,312,978
(4,951,000,000)
(5,296,000,000)
20,295,666,677
127,247,979,655

117,193,561,623
26,973,355
117,220,534,978

Initial Capital and
Contributions from
Unappropriated
the Government
Retained Earnings

(3,000,000,000)
(6,672,000,000)
20,992,495,028
139,482,979,485

(3,000,000)
132,134,484,457
(3,972,000,000)

(21,222,000)
122,088,817,780
(4,951,000,000)
(5,296,000,000)
20,295,666,677
132,137,484,457

122,083,066,425
26,973,355
122,110,039,780

Total Equity

Consolidated financial statements

Unit: Baht
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5.18
5.18

5.18

5.18

5.18
5.18

5.18

3

Notes

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Balance as at January 1, 2014, before adjustment
Effect from the restatement
Balance as at January 1, 2014, after adjustment
Accumulated amount from
		 Remittance to the Ministry of Finance for the year 2013 (addition)
Balance after adjustment
Interim remittance to the Ministry of Finance from net profit for the year 2014
Reserve for remittance to the Ministry of Finance from net profit for the year 2014
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 2014
Balance as at December 31, 2014
Accumulated amount from
		 Remittance to the Ministry of Finance for the year 2014 (addition)
Balance after adjustment
Interim remittance to the Ministry of Finance from net profit for the year 2015
Remittance to the Ministry of Finance from approximate profit for the year 2015
		 (addition)
Reserve for remittance to the Ministry of Finance from net profit for the year 2015
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 2015
Balance as at December 31, 2015

THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
For The Year Ended December 31, 2015

Statements Of Changes In Equity

4,889,504,802

4,889,504,802
-

4,889,504,802
4,889,504,802

4,889,504,802
4,889,504,802

(3,000,000,000)
(6,672,000,000)
20,930,382,671
134,546,461,480

(3,000,000)
127,260,078,809
(3,972,000,000)

(21,222,000)
117,237,180,108
(4,951,000,000)
(5,296,000,000)
20,272,898,701
127,263,078,809

117,231,428,753
26,973,355
117,258,402,108

Initial Capital and
Contributions from
Unappropriated
the Government
Retained Earnings

(3,000,000,000)
(6,672,000,000)
20,930,382,671
139,435,966,282

(3,000,000)
132,149,583,611
(3,972,000,000)

(21,222,000)
122,126,684,910
(4,951,000,000)
(5,296,000,000)
20,272,898,701
132,152,583,611

122,120,933,555
26,973,355
122,147,906,910

Total Equity

Separate financial statements

Unit: Baht
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Statements Of Cash Flows
THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
For The Year Ended December 31, 2015

Unit: Baht

Consolidated financial statements
2015

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Profit for the year
Adjustments of net profit to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
		 Depreciation and amortization
		 Bad debts and doubtful accounts
		 Provision for obsolete materials and supplies
		 Amortization of deferred revenues
		 Employee benefit obligations
		 Long-term provisions
		 Loss on disposal of assets
		 (Gain) loss on disposal of materials and supplies
		 Gain on foreign exchange
		 Share of profit of associates
		Interest income
		Interest expense
Profit from operating activities before changes in
		 operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets (increase) decrease
		 Trade accounts receivable
		 Materials and supplies
		 Special-purpose deposits at financial institutions
		Accrued revenues
		Interest received
		 Undue input VAT
		 Advance payments to suppliers
		 Other current assets
		 Other non-current assets
Changes in operating liabilities increase (decrease)
		 Trade accounts payable
		Other payables
		 Advance received per contract
		Deposits payable

2014

21,134,434,582

20,419,772,331

18,924,706,824
(5,433,333)
(34,835,721)
(3,635,280,475)
321,464,978
192,802,001
79,892,384
(13,223,636)
(31,347,361)
(66,579,176)
(1,382,774,270)
3,310,997,188
38,794,823,985

17,595,229,162
104,299,835
(2,800,441)
(3,338,220,265)
447,526,635
(4,550,108)
1,179,636
2,285,159
(135,469,126)
(30,092,291)
(1,350,430,414)
3,404,608,783
37,113,338,896

(250,353,078)
952,549,040
(2,587,259,118)
(5,133,172,033)
1,439,278,903
(92,352,079)
35,410,516
614,038,085
(33,200,991)

(2,085,495,559)
1,627,616,938
(3,024,489,982)
720,025,617
1,349,504,290
(325,242,576)
(103,504,156)
86,589,123
12,977,568

591,844,995
(345,472)
231,458,634
50,018,973

5,658,505,958
205,765,788
127,707,000
19,632,808

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements Of Cash Flows
THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
For The Year Ended December 31, 2015

Unit: Baht

Consolidated financial statements
Notes

		Accrued expenses
		 Other current liabilities
		 Construction obligations
		Deferred revenues
		 Electricity usage guarantee
		 Sales and service guarantee
		 Employee gratuity fund
		 Other non-current liabilities
			 Net cash provided by operating activites
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
		 Payment of Current investments
		 Payment of investments in associates
		 Dividend received from associates
		 Payment of property, plant and equipment
		 Payment of constructions in progress
		 Interest expense capitalized to constructions in progress
		 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
		 Payment of intangible assets
		 Payment of investment property
			 Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
		Interest paid
		 Payment of long-term loans
		 Proceeds from long-term loans
		 Payment of finance lease liabilities
		 Remittance to the Ministry of Finance
			 Net cash used in financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of periods
Cash and cash equivalents at end of periods
4.1 5.1

2015

2014

531,839,107
462,456,671
350,182,557
7,091,459,611
1,628,899,353
31,348,257
(6,182,920)
93,042,182
44,795,785,178

(264,613,555)
(508,437,193)
104,218,062
7,011,308,074
1,709,977,859
250,280,486
(3,630,655)
49,682,034,791

(11,047,000,000)
19,965,000
(3,675,291,136)
(22,011,395,897)
(404,393,697)
15,651
(65,805,681)
(655,500)
(37,184,561,260)

(165,000,000)
(4,366,559,786)
(22,214,785,190)
(253,734,558)
118,573
(216,506,007)
(27,216,466,968)

(3,188,688,547)
(7,939,985,700)
10,000,000,000
(713,742,136)
(12,271,000,000)
(14,113,416,383)
(6,502,192,465)
10,940,091,492
4,437,899,027

(3,237,490,917)
(7,395,857,717)
10,400,000,000
(836,592,797)
(13,534,000,000)
(14,603,941,431)
7,861,626,392
3,078,465,100
10,940,091,492

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements Of Cash Flows
THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
For The Year Ended December 31, 2015

Unit: Baht

Separate financial statements
2015

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Profit for the year
Adjustments of net profit to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
		 Depreciation and amortization
		 Bad debts and doubtful accounts
		 Provision for obsolete materials and supplies
		 Amortization of deferred revenues
		 Employee benefit obligations
		 Long-term provisions
		 Loss on disposal of assets
		 (Gain) loss on disposal of materials and supplies
		 Gain on foreign exchange
		Interest income
		Interest expense
Profit from operating activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets (increase) decrease
		 Trade accounts receivable
		 Materials and supplies
		 Special-purpose deposits at financial institutions
		Accrued revenues
		Interest received
		 Undue input VAT
		 Advance payments to suppliers
		 Other current assets
		 Other non-current assets
Changes in operating liabilities increase (decrease)
		 Trade accounts payable
		Other payables
		 Advance received per contract
		Deposits payable

2014

21,072,322,225

20,397,004,355

18,923,920,832
(5,433,333)
(34,835,721)
(3,635,280,475)
321,176,247
192,802,001
79,892,384
(13,223,636)
(31,347,361)
(1,379,610,609)
3,310,823,194
38,801,205,748

17,594,537,740
104,299,835
(2,800,441)
(3,338,220,265)
447,396,797
(4,550,108)
1,179,636
2,285,159
(135,469,126)
(1,348,215,429)
3,404,422,798
37,121,870,951

(250,637,748)
956,147,885
(2,587,259,118)
(5,133,172,033)
1,436,036,928
(92,397,570)
35,410,516
530,780,207
(33,200,991)

(2,084,802,792)
1,627,616,938
(3,024,489,982)
721,447,617
1,347,612,314
(325,195,638)
(103,504,156)
85,787,426
12,930,862

577,055,448
(410,710)
231,458,634
50,018,973

5,657,469,921
205,840,610
127,707,000
19,632,808

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

PEA

Annual Report
2015

Statements Of Cash Flows
THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
For The Year Ended December 31, 2015

Unit: Baht

Separate financial statements
Notes

		Accrued expenses
		 Other current liabilities
		Construction obligations
		Deferred revenues
		 Electricity usage guarantee
		 Sales and service guarantee
		 Employee gratuity fund
		 Other non-current liabilities
			 Net cash provided by operating activites
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
		 Payment of current investments
		 Payment of investments in subsidiary
		 Payment of property, plant and equipment
		 Payment of constructions in progress
		 Interest expense capitalized to constructions in progress
		 Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
		 Payment of intangible assets
		 Payment of investment property
			 Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
		Interest paid
		 Payment of long-term loans
		 Proceeds from long-term loans
		 Payment of finance lease liabilities
		 Remittance to the Ministry of Finance
			 Net cash used in financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of periods
Cash and cash equivalents at end of periods

4.1 5.1

2015

2014

534,505,521
462,434,634
350,182,557
7,091,459,611
1,628,899,353
31,348,257
(6,182,920)
93,042,182
44,706,725,364

(267,168,501)
(508,288,693)
104,218,062
7,011,308,074
1,709,977,859
250,206,286
(3,630,655)
49,686,546,311

(11,047,000,000)
(25,908,750)
(3,674,975,651)
(22,011,395,897)
(404,393,697)
15,651
(65,768,651)
(655,500)
(37,230,082,495)

(102,500,000)
(4,366,487,502)
(22,214,785,190)
(253,734,558)
118,573
(216,506,007)
(27,153,894,684)

(3,188,688,547)
(7,939,985,700)
10,000,000,000
(713,007,494)
(12,271,000,000)
(14,112,681,741)
(6,636,038,872)
10,699,759,898
4,063,721,026

(3,237,490,917)
(7,395,857,717)
10,400,000,000
(836,007,807)
(13,534,000,000)
(14,603,356,441)
7,929,295,186
2,770,464,712
10,699,759,898

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
THE PROVINCIAL ELECTRICITY AUTHORITY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
For The Year Ended December 31, 2015
1.

General Information

2.

Basis of Financial Statements Presentation

The Provincial Electricity Authority was established as a state enterprise for public utility under the Provincial
Electricity Authority Act, B.E. 2503 (1960) and is located at 200 Ngamwongwan Road, Ladyao, Chatuchak, Bangkok
10900. The main objective of Provincial Electricity Authority is to generate, obtain, distribute and sell electricity energy
to people, businesses and industrial sectors in 74 provinces throughout Thailand, with the exception of Bangkok,
Nonthaburi, and Samut Prakan provinces.
The Provincial Electricity Authority has extensive transactions and relationships with the Electricity Generating
Authority of Thailand (EGAT). Most of electricity energy sold to customers by Provincial Electricity Authority was
purchased from EGAT. Accordingly, the financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the conditions
that would have existed or the results of operations that would have occurred if Provincial Electricity Authority has
operated without such affiliations.
2.1 Basis of consolidated and separate financial statements preparation

		 The consolidated and the separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standards and generally accepted accounting principles under Accounting Act, B.E. 2543 (2000), which
include accounting standards under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547 (2004), including interpretations and
guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions (FAP), and the notification of the Department
of Business Development “Definition of the abbreviated components required in the Financial Statements, B.E. 2554
(2011)”, dated September 28, B.E. 2554 (2011).
		 The consolidated and the separate financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention with the exception as disclosed in Note 4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
Consolidated financial statements include financial statements of Provincial Electricity Authority
		
and financial statements of its subsidiary, PEA Encom International Company Limited after elimination of related
company transactions and balances. PEA Encom International Co., Ltd. was established in Thailand in which Provincial
Electricity Authority has controlled and held over 50% of paid-up share capital.
		 Shareholding proportion and amount of investments in associates and investments in subsidiary are
presented in Notes 5.8 and 5.9, respectively.
		 Investments in associates are recorded in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Separate financial statements include financial statements of Provincial Electricity Authority which
		
include transactions of PEA Employee Gratuity Fund and investments in subsidiary and associates are recorded under
the cost method.
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		 This English translation of the financial statements has been prepared from the statutory financial
statements that were issued in Thai language. In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the
two languages, the Thai language statutory financial statements shall prevail.
2.2 Thai Accounting Standards, Thai Financial Reporting Standards, Thai Standing Interpretations

and Thai Financial Reporting Interpretations are announced in the Government Gazette as follows:

		 2.2.1 Effective for the current accounting period
			
Provincial Electricity Authority has applied Thai accounting standards, Thai financial reporting
standards, Thai standing interpretations and Thai financial reporting interpretations, which are newly issued and revised
by FAP which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015 onward, including TFRS 4
(revised 2015) Insurance Contracts which will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016
onward. The management of Provincial Electricity Authority determined that the applications will not have significant
impacts on accounting policies and the financial statements of Provincial Electricity Authority and its subsidiary.
		 2.2.2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015 as follows:
			
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (revised 2015)

			

Thai Accounting Standards

Title

			
- No.1 (revised 2015)
Presentation of Financial Statements
			
- No.2 (revised 2015)
Inventories
			
- No.7 (revised 2015)
Statement of Cash Flows
			
- No.8 (revised 2015)
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
						and Errors
			
- No.10 (revised 2015)
Events after the Reporting Period
			
- No.11 (revised 2015)
Construction Contracts
			
- No.12 (revised 2015)
Income Taxes
			
- No.16 (revised 2015)
Property, Plant and Equipment
			
- No.17 (revised 2015)
Leases
			
- No.18 (revised 2015)
Revenue
			
- No.19 (revised 2015)
Employee Benefits
			
- No.20 (revised 2015)
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
						Government Assistance
			
- No.21 (revised 2015)
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
			
- No.23 (revised 2015)
Borrowing Costs
			
- No.24 (revised 2015)
Related Party Disclosures
			
- No.26 (revised 2015)
Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans
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Thai Accounting Standards

Title

			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			

-

Separate Financial Statements
Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
Earnings per Share
Interim Financial Reporting
Impairment of Assets
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Intangible Assets
Investment Property
Agriculture

			

Thai Financial Reporting

No.27 (revised 2015)
No.28 (revised 2015)
No.29 (revised 2015)
No.33 (revised 2015)
No.34 (revised 2015)
No.36 (revised 2015)
No.37 (revised 2015)
No.38 (revised 2015)
No.40 (revised 2015)
No.41

			 Standards

Title

			
- No.2 (revised 2015)
Share-based Payment
			
- No.3 (revised 2015)
Business Combinations
			
- No.4 (revised 2015)
Insurance Contracts
			
- No.5 (revised 2015)
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
						Operations
			
- No.6 (revised 2015)
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
			
- No.8 (revised 2015)
Operating Segments
			
- No.10 (revised 2015)
Consolidated Financial Statements
			
- No.11 (revised 2015)
Joint Arrangements
			
- No.12 (revised 2015)
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
			
- No.13 (revised 2015)
Fair Value Measurement
			

Thai Standing Interpretations

			 Committee

Title

			
- No.10 (revised 2015)
Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to 		
						Operating Activities
			
- No.15 (revised 2015)
Operating Leases – Incentives
			
- No.25 (revised 2015)
Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity
						or its Shareholders
			
- No.27 (revised 2015)
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
						 the Legal Form of a Lease
			
- No.29 (revised 2015)
Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures		
			
- No.31 (revised 2015)
Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
						Services
			
- No.32 (revised 2015)
Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs
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Thai Financial Reporting

Interpretations Committee

Title

			
- No.1 (revised 2015)
Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
						 Similar Liabilities
			
- No.4 (revised 2015)
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
			
- No.5 (revised 2015)
Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, 		
			
			 Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
			
- No.7 (revised 2015)
Applying the Restatement Approach under TAS 29
						 (revised 2015) Financial Reporting in
						 Hyperinflationary Economies
			
- No.10 (revised 2015)
Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
			
- No.12 (revised 2015)
Service Concession Arrangements
			
- No.13 (revised 2015)
Customer Loyalty Programmes
			
- No.14 (revised 2015)
TAS 19 (revised 2015) The Limit on a Defined Benefit
						 Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
						Interaction
			
- No.15 (revised 2015)
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
			
- No.17 (revised 2015)
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
			
- No.18 (revised 2015)
Transfers of Assets from Customers
			
- No.20 (revised 2015)
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
			
- No.21
Levies
The management of Provincial Electricity Authority and its subsidiary plans to apply Thai Accounting
Standards, Thai Financial Reporting Standards, Thai Standing Interpretations Committee, and Thai Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee which are relevant to Provincial Electricity Authority and its subsidiary. The period for an
initial application of the standards and interpretations to the financial statements of Provincial Electricity Authority
and its subsidiary will be based on an effective date for each of the standards and interpretations, accordingly. The
management of Provincial Electricity Authority assesses that these financial reporting standards will not have significant
impacts on the financial statements for the period when they are initially applied.
3.

Retrospective and reclassification
3.1 Retrospective Adjustment

		 Provincial Electricity Authority has applied retrospectively a change in measurement basis for investment
property, which has effects on the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at December 31,
2014 and 2013, the consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive income, and the consolidated and
separate statements of changes in equity for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.
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3.2 Reclassification

		 Some items presented in statements of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2014
are reclassified in accordance with the presentation of statements of comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2015.
Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated financial statements

Statements of financial position
as at December 31, 2014
Investment property
Deferred revenues
Unappropriated retained earnings
Statements of financial position
as at December 31, 2013
Investment property
Deferred revenues
Unappropriated retained earnings
Statements of comprehensive income
for the year ended December 31, 2014
Other operating revenues
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other operating expenses
Other expenses
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year
Statements of changes in equity
Balance as at January 1, 2014
Unappropriated retained earnings
Total equity
Statements of changes in equity
Balance as at December 31, 2014
Unappropriated retained earnings
Total equity

Before
adjustment

Adjustment

Reclassified

After
adjustment

74.79
39,716.89
127,223.40

262.10
237.52
24.58

-

336.89
39,954.41
127,247.98

72.42
36,035.62
117,193.56

272.68
245.70
26.98

-

345.10
36,281.32
117,220.54

12,427.24
17,575.76
5,112.53
21.66
20,422.16
20,298.06

8.18
10.57
(2.39)
(2.39)

(32.36)
32.36
-

12,435.42
17,586.33
5,080.17
54.02
20,419.77
20,295.67

117,193.56
122,083.06

26.98
26.98

-

117,220.54
122,110.04

127,223.40
132,112.90

24.58
24.58

-

127,247.98
132,137.48
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Unit: Million Baht

Separate financial statements

Statements of financial position
as at December 31, 2014
Investment property
Deferred revenues
Unappropriated retained earnings
Statements of financial position
as at December 31, 2013
Investment property
Deferred revenues
Unappropriated retained earnings
Statements of comprehensive income
for the year ended December 31, 2014
Other operating revenues
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other operating expenses
Other expenses
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year
Statements of changes in equity
Balance as at January 1, 2014
Unappropriated retained earnings
Total equity
Statements of changes in equity
Balance as at December 31, 2014
Unappropriated retained earnings
Total equity

Before
adjustment

Adjustment

Reclassified

After
adjustment

74.79
39,716.89
127,238.50

262.10
237.52
24.58

-

336.89
39,954.41
127,263.08

72.42
36,035.62
117,231.43

272.68
245.70
26.98

-

345.10
36,281.32
117,258.41

12,418.95
17,575.07
5,101.14
21.66
20,399.39
20,275.29

8.18
10.57
(2.39)
(2.39)

(32.36)
32.36
-

12,427.13
17,585.64
5,068.78
54.02
20,397.00
20,272.90

117,231.43
122,120.93

26.98
26.98

-

117,258.41
122,147.91

127,238.50
132,128.00

24.58
24.58

-

127,263.08
132,152.58
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4.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

		 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits at banks and financial institutions with
original maturities of 3 months or less, excluding deposits at banks used as collateral.
4.2 Trade accounts receivable

		 Trade accounts receivable are stated at net realizable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts are based
on contingent loss from uncollectible receivables which are estimated from historical collection experiences and a
review of the current status of the non-governmental or state enterprise receivables outstanding at the statement of
financial position date, after deducting electricity usage guarantee in accordance with the regulation of the Ministry
of Finance regarding “Accounting and Finance of Government Enterprise, B.E. 2548 (2005)” and a resolution of PEA’s
Audit Committee Meeting No. 3/2549 dated on March 10, 2006 as follows:
Overdue period

Percentage of allowance for
doubtful accounts

Over 6 months - 1 year

50

Over 1 year
100
		 Increases and decreases in allowance for doubtful accounts are recognized as expenses or income for
the period when incurred.
4.3 Materials and supplies

		 Materials and supplies are stated at the lower of the cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined
using the weighted average cost method. Allowance is made in full for obsolete materials and supplies, materials
and supplies under investigation and materials and supplies pending for claim.
4.4 Special–purpose deposits at financial institutions

		 Special–purpose deposits at financial institutions consist of:
		 4.4.1 Special–purpose deposits at financial institutions, which are presented as current assets in
statements of financial position, are deposits to be used within one accounting period and with the specific purposes
and conditions which are electricity usage guarantee fund, sinking fund for repayment of bonds, and PEA fund for
guarantee of employees’ loans. All of which can be used in Provincial Electricity Authority’s activities in case of
Provincial Electricity Authority having deficits in working capital. Interest from electricity usage guarantee fund is used
for benefits of electricity users, interest from KFW Fund for scholarships is used for training, analysis and research,
and subsidy received from government and other governmental agencies for projects such as subsidy from Energy
Conservation Policy from the Energy Policy and Planning Office.
		 4.4.2 Special–purpose deposits at financial institutions, which are presented as non-current assets in
statements of financial position, are deposits to be used longer than one accounting period, and cannot be used for
operating activities such as PEA Employee Gratuity Fund.
4.5 Investments in associates

		
method.

Investments in associates are presented in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
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4.6 Investments in subsidiary

		 Investments in subsidiary are presented in the separate financial statements under the cost method.
		 In case an impairment of investment has occurred, impairment loss of investment will be recognized in
the statements of comprehensive income.
4.7 Investment property

		 Investment property comprises of property and plant acquired for used in the operation but has not
been utilized and/or property and plant owned to earn rentals. Provincial Electricity Authority has adopted to
measured using the cost method. Subsequently investment property is presented at cost after deducting accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses of assets (if any).
4.8 Property, plant and equipment

		 Provincial Electricity Authority’s policies for property, plant and equipment, and depreciation are
summarized as follows:
		 Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost which is calculated from purchase prices
plus any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operation in the manner intended. Self-constructed assets are recorded at construction costs, consisting of material
costs, direct labor and construction related expenses.
		 Property is stated at cost. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses of assets (if any).
		 Property comprises of land used in the operation and land acquired for operating objective with certain
plan of usage within one year.
		 Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:
Percentage per annum

Buildings and constructions
Electricity generating systems
Electricity distributing systems
Furniture, tools, equipment and vehicles

3 and 6.25
3 - 20
4 - 20
4 - 20

		 When property, plant and equipment are impaired, the impairment losses will be recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income.
		 In case of disposal, Provincial Electricity Authority writes off cost of assets and its accumulated depreciation
from the accounts, and recognizes gain or loss on disposal of assets as other income or other expenses in the
statements of comprehensive income.
4.9 Constructions in progress

		 Constructions in progress include construction costs, borrowing costs incurred on direct costs associated
with the borrowing of funds used for the construction, and other costs which are directly related to construction
or preparation of the property for its intended use. Constructions in progress are not included in calculation of
depreciation.
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4.10 Intangible assets

		 Intangible assets comprise of computer software licenses and computer software systems for core
business that are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
		 Amortization of computer software licenses and computer software systems for core business is calculated
using the straight–line method over the lease period and recognized as expenses in the statements of comprehensive
income.
		 Intangible assets which are impaired will be recognized as other operating expenses in the statements
of comprehensive income when incurred.
4.11 Foreign currency transactions

		 Foreign currency transactions are translated into Thai Baht by the exchange rates prevailing at the
transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities at the statements of financial position date which are denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the reference exchange rates announced by the Bank of Thailand
at such date. Gains or losses on exchange arising on settlements and translations are recognized as revenues or
expenses for the period when incurred.
4.12 Financial instruments

		 Financial assets, presented at the statement of financial position date of Provincial Electricity Authority,
comprises of cash and cash equivalents, and trade accounts receivable. Financial liabilities are obligations under
contracts comprising trade accounts payable, other payables, other current liabilities, short-term loans and long-term
loans.
4.13 Long–term provisions

		 Provincial Electricity Authority records the provisions in the statements of financial position if Provincial
Electricity Authority has contingent liabilities arising from legal claims or result of a past event which is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations, and it can be
estimated with sufficient reliability. The actual results may differ from those estimates.
		 Provincial Electricity Authority recognizes the provisions with the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the statement of financial position date by considering risks and uncertainties
that inevitably surround obligations. The provisions are measured based on expected cash flows associated with the
present obligation as present value of the expected cash flows associated with that present obligation.
		 Provisions due within one year are classified as short-term provisions and provisions due more than one
year are classified as long-term provisions.
4.14 Deferred revenues

		 4.14.1 Contributions for constructing electricity distributing systems represent cash collected from people
who request to use the electricity in order to reduce the burden of Provincial Electricity Authority for construction
of the electricity distributing systems. Ownership of the systems including responsibility for maintenance and repair
belong to Provincial Electricity Authority. Such contributions are presented as deferred revenues in the statements
of financial position and recognized as revenues at the rate of 5% per annum when the construction is completed
(the rate is equal to the depreciation rate of Provincial Electricity Authority’s electricity distributing system assets).
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		 4.14.2 Contribution revenues represent assets received from donation which are used in operations. Most
of such assets are electricity distribution systems that the electricity users donate to Provincial Electricity Authority,
which Provincial Electricity Authority is responsible for maintenance. Such assets are presented as deferred revenues
from acquisition of donated assets in the statements of financial position and recognized as revenues at the rate in
accordance with depreciation rates of such assets over their useful lives.
			
Assets received from donation which are not used in operations are recognized as other nonoperating revenues in the statements of comprehensive income in the period of acquisition.
		 4.14.3 Contribution revenues from foreign financial institutions represent contributions from foreign
financial institutions in form of interest discount to be used for various purposes of Provincial Electricity Authority.
Such revenues are presented as deferred revenues in the statements of financial position and recognized as revenues
based on the actual amount of expenses incurred.
		 4.14.4 Deferred revenues from rental represent rental income which Provincial Electricity Authority
has received in advance from third parties whom rent the raw lands of Provincial Electricity Authority. And deferred
revenues will be recognized as rental income from investment property over the lease period.
4.15 Electricity usage guarantee

		 Electricity usage guarantee is the money that electricity users deposit to Provincial Electricity Authority
for guarantee of electricity usage. Provincial Electricity Authority deposits into the bank account named “Electricity
Usage Guarantee Fund” to reserve fund for refunding of electricity usage guarantee to electricity users. Any interest
income earned is separately deposited in the bank account named “Interest from Electricity Usage Guarantee Fund.”
Provincial Electricity Authority will use interest of the fund to repaid as interest on deposit for electricity usage
guarantee to the electricity users according to the requirement of the Energy Regulatory Commission and will use in
activities that are beneficial and/or other public interests to electricity users.
		 Provincial Electricity Authority has set the Regulation on supervision of Electricity Usage Guarantee Fund
(2014) and appointed the committee which is responsible for supervising and controlling an operation of Electricity
Usage Guarantee Fund and interest from Electricity Usage Guarantee Fund. Provincial Electricity Authority has to made
fund transfer at the amount equal to the net increase in electricity usage guarantee for each month to the “Electricity
Usage Guarantee Fund” account. In case of working capital deficiency or liquidity difficulty, Provincial Electricity
Authority can use the electricity usage guarantee fund as a working capital under consideration and approval of the
Board of Directors of Provincial Electricity Authority. Then, Provincial Electricity Authority will be required to repay
to electricity usage guarantee fund for not less than Baht 100 million each month by depositing into the “Electricity
Usage Guarantee Fund” account until the amount is fully covered. Also, Provincial Electricity Authority is required to
make a payment of interest at the interest rate of savings account for state enterprises specified by Krung Thai Bank
Public Company Limited by depositing into the “Interest from Electricity Usage Guarantee Fund”. In case of working
capital deficiency or liquidity difficulty, the repayment can be postponed under the approval of the Governor and
should be reported to the Board of Directors.
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4.16 Employee gratuity fund

		 Provincial Electricity Authority has established Employee Gratuity Fund for the purpose of giving aid to
employees in case of termination without guilt in accordance with the Regulations of the Provincial Electricity Authority
on Employee Gratuity Fund and Benefit for PEA Employees, B.E. 2522 (1979). Provincial Electricity Authority pays
monthly contribution at the rate of 10% of employee salaries and recognizes as an expense in the statements of
comprehensive income of Provincial Electricity Authority. In this regard, transactions of employee gratuity fund are
included in the financial statements of Provincial Electricity Authority and also eliminate the related party transactions.
4.17 Employee benefits

		 4.17.1 Short-term employee benefits
			
Short-term employee benefits comprise salaries, overtimes, bonuses, compensated absences
and other short-term benefits in accordance with the contract of employment. Short-term employee benefits will
be recognized as employee expenses in the statements of comprehensive income on accrual basis.
		 4.17.2 Post-employment benefits
			
4.17.2.1 Defined contribution plan
				
Provincial Electricity Authority has established the provident fund in accordance with
the Provident Fund Act, B.E. 2530 (1987) which employees have option to pay into the fund accumulated at the rate
of 3 – 11% of the salary of each and Provincial Electricity Authority will pay into the fund at the rate of 9 – 11% of
salary of members of the fund to defined contribution plans.
				
Provincial Electricity Authority’s contributions are recognized as employee expenses
in the statements of comprehensive income. Provincial Electricity Authority has also established employee gratuity
fund according to Note 5.25.
			
4.17.2.2 Defined benefit plan
				
Provincial Electricity Authority’s defined benefit plan comprises remuneration under
the State Enterprise Labor Relations Act, B.E. 2543 (2000), compensation under Labor Law, compensated absences
of employees who are dismissed without committing an offense under the law, souvenir for retired employees and
other post–employment benefits in accordance with the contract of employment.
				
Since January 1, 2011, Provincial Electricity Authority has provisions for defined benefit
plan are calculated by the actuarial technique using projected unit credit method. The estimation future cash flows
shall reflect which are calculated on the basis of employee salaries, turnover rate, mortality, length of service and
other factors.
				
Provincial Electricity Authority recognizes provisions for defined benefit plan in the
statements of financial position at net present value of employee benefit obligations based on unrecognized past
services and fair value of project assets (if any). Provincial Electricity Authority also recognizes defined benefit plan
expenses as expenses related to employment in the statements of comprehensive income.
				
Actuarial gains (losses) occurred are recognized in the statements of comprehensive
income.
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		 4.17.3 Other long-term employee benefits
			
Provincial Electricity Authority has given a welfare for employees who work for the complete
agreed period as other long-term employee benefits. Provincial Electricity Authority accounts these employee benefits
by using projected unit credit method which are calculated by the actuary.
4.18 Technology research and development fund

		 Provincial Electricity Authority has established technology research and development fund, according
to the policy of the Office of the National Economic and Social Development Board, to continuously promote and
support existing and new technology research and development in highly efficient manner. The fund aims to reduce
the dependence and importation of technology from abroad. Consequently, Provincial Electricity Authority is able
to apply the results of research and development to its operations in the highest efficiency. Provincial Electricity
Authority has contributed from its budget as a fund granted to domestic educational institutions, domestic research
and development institutions and business units within Provincial Electricity Authority.
		 The contributions of technology research and development are recognized as an expense when incurred.
4.19 Revenue recognition

		 Sales of electricity energy are recognized on a monthly basis in accordance with a cyclical recording of
electricity usage units of the customers from electric meters.
		 Sales of electricity equipment are recognized when goods are delivered, and the ownership is transferred
to customers.
		 Income from constructions for electricity users is recognized based on proportion to actual costs incurred.
		 Deferred contributions for construction are recognized as income at the rate of 5% per annum (equal
to depreciation rate of Provincial Electricity Authority’s electricity distributing system assets).
		 Interest income is recognized as it accrues on a time proportion basis taking into account the principal
amount outstanding and the effective interest rate.
4.20 Executive remuneration

		 Executive remuneration represents the compensation paid to directors and management who have the
power to decide which includes both of monetary and remunerations benefit.
4.21 Financial costs

		 Financial costs represent costs incurred from seeking operational funds which include interest expense
and fee paid.
		 Interest and other expenses, directly attributable to constructions of buildings and electricity generating
and distributing systems, are incurred from loans made specifically for purpose of acquiring fixed assets are capitalized
as costs of assets, and interest expense incurred from loans made on general purpose are capitalized as a part of the
costs of the assets at the capitalization rate. Interest and other expenses incurred subsequent to the completion of
construction are recognized as expenses for the period in the statements of comprehensive income.
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4.22 Related party transactions

		 Related parties are individuals or enterprises that control or are controlled, directly or indirectly by
Provincial Electricity Authority, or are under common control with Provincial Electricity Authority. Moreover, related
parties also include associates and individuals who have direct or indirect voting rights that result in significant influence
on Provincial Electricity Authority, executives, directors or employees and close member of that person’s family is
related to Provincial Electricity Authority’s executives who have control over Provincial Electricity Authority.
4.23 Use of judgments and significant accounting estimates

		 To prepare of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles,
management has to make estimates and several assumptions that affect amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from the estimates such as
allowance for doubtful accounts, allowance for obsolete materials and supplies and allowance for loss or misstated
or lost materials.
4.24 Operating segments

		 Provincial Electricity Authority presents operating segments by geographical areas in which Provincial
Electricity Authority’s management, administration and financial reporting structure are criteria for determining
segmentation.
		 Provincial Electricity Authority has 5 geographical segments which include northern, northeastern, central,
southern areas and headquarter. Each area is responsible for distributing electricity in its own area. The headquarter
is responsible for setting policies and plans as well as providing all necessary materials to the regional areas.
		 According to PEA accounting policies for operating segments, each of the operating segments recognize
revenues based on the amount of electricity sold in its own areas. Provincial Electricity Authority also allocates its
cost of sales from headquarter to each of the operating segments based on actual cost occurred.
		 Assets of each regional area are those assets used in operating activities by each of the operating segment
and related activities.
		 Liabilities of each regional area are those liabilities incurred from operating activities by each of the
operating segment and related activities, except accounts payable-electricity, long-term loans, accrued remittance
to the Ministry of Finance and liabilities under financial leases which the headquarter does not allocate those items
to each of the operating segments.

PEA

Annual Report
2015

5.

Supplementary information

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated financial
statements

Separate financial statements

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

30.57

34.04

30.55

34.04

0.35
1,114.70
3,292.28
4,437.90

32.88
10,690.80
182.37
10,940.09

0.35
1,032.82
3,000.00
4,063.72

32.88
10,632.84

Cash
Cash at banks:
- Current accounts
- Savings accounts
- Fixed deposits
Total

10,699.76

5.2 Short–term investment

		 Short–term investment in the consolidated and separate financial statements as at December 31, 2015,
amounting to Baht 11,047.00 million is fixed deposit with maturity of 6 months with a financial institution.
5.3 Trade accounts receivable consist of:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated
financial statements

Accounts receivable from sales of electricity
Accounts receivable from sales of equipment and
rendering of services
Total
		

Separate
financial statements

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

32,445.78

32,195.34

32,445.78

32,195.34

1,191.74
33,637.52

1,168.30
33,363.64

1,190.97
33,636.75

1,167.24
33,362.58
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5.3.1 Accounts receivable from sales of electricity are as follows:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated and separate financial statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Outstanding period
1 month - 6 months
Over 6 months – 1 year
Over 1 year
Less Undue VAT from sales
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total
		

Public
Sector

4,092.12
70.42
126.51
4,289.05
278.42
4,010.63
4,010.63

Dec. 31, 2014

Private
Sector

Total

Total

30,236.22
58.71
1,408.12
31,703.05
2,051.27
29,651.78
1,216.63
28,435.15

34,328.34
129.13
1,534.63
35,992.10
2,329.69
33,662.41
1,216.63
32,445.78

33,954.24
295.24
1,507.80
35,757.28
2,311.75
33,445.53
1,250.19
32,195.34

5.3.2 Accounts receivable from sales of equipment and rendering of services are as follows:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated
financial statements

Receivables from sales and rendering of
services
Receivables from construction obligations
Receivables from construction obligations due
from TT&T Plc.
Other receivables
Less Undue VAT from sales
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total

Separate
financial statements

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

287.72

263.74

286.95

262.68

916.54

868.10

916.54

868.10

148.23
1,352.49
88.33
1,264.16
72.42
1,191.74

938.76
192.17
2,262.77
147.77
2,115.00
946.70
1,168.30

148.23
1,351.72
88.33
1,263.39
72.42
1,190.97

938.76
192.17
2,261.71
147.77
2,113.94
946.70
1,167.24
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Receivables from construction obligations due from TT&T Plc. are receivables that were authorized
by the Telephone Organization of Thailand [at present, TOT corporation Public Company Limited] to carry out business
relating to obtain a permission to put up the distribution poles and electric power lines, to make a payment and
to communicate and coordinate with Provincial Electricity Authority on project for expansion of the one million
telephone lines within the provincial region. The outstanding balance of the receivables from construction obligations
is at Baht 1,129.07 million. Provincial Electricity Authority has filed a request for debt settlement to official receiver at
rehabilitation office of Legal Execution Department. And, the official receiver ordered TT&T Plc. to make a payment
to Provincial Electricity Authority amounting to Baht 229.77 million with an interest at the rate of 7.5% per annum
on the principal amount of receivable of Baht 192.25 million from May 5, 2000 onward, which is the date when the
Central Bankruptcy Court had an order to file for rehabilitation. Provincial Electricity Authority claims the right to file
a statement of defense to the Central Bankruptcy Court and the Supreme Court, respectively. The courts adjudicated
to affirm the official receiver order. So, TT&T Plc. has settled its debt by issuing its ordinary shares amounting to Baht
267.73 million to Provincial Electricity Authority on September 30, 2002.
			
In addition, Provincial Electricity Authority has authorized the public prosecutor to file the civil
case against the Telephone Organization of Thailand to make a payment amounting to Baht 1,133.82 million as
undecided case No. 5389/2544 on November 1, 2001. The Civil Court had the order No. 6554/2545 on May 17, 2006,
has affirmed the order of official receiver. Subsequently, the chief prosecutor has appealed to the Court of Appeal,
and the Court of Appeal had an order No. 11396/2553 on July 23, 2010, to adjudges to dismiss the plaintiff’s plaint.
Currently, the Supreme Court has an order No. 6952/2557 on June 3, 2014, and has affirmed the judgment of the
Court of Appeals to dismiss the plaintiff’s plaint.
			
As at December 31, 2015, there is no ending balance of receivables from construction obligations
due from TT&T Plc because Provincial Electricity Authority has made adjustment and write off balance on March
31, 2015. As at December 31, 2014, receivables from construction obligations amounting to Baht 938.76 million
include receivables from construction obligations amounting to Baht 877.35 million and undue output VAT from
sales amounting to Baht 61.41 million, which Provincial Electricity Authority has made full provision of Baht 877.35
million.
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5.4 Materials and supplies consist of:

Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated
financial statements

Materials and supplies
Operating materials and supplies
Materials and supplies for
construction and maintenance
Materials and supplies for repair
Demolition materials and supplies,
and obsolete materials and supplies
Materials and supplies pending for adjustments
Materials and supplies in transit
Less Allowance for obsolete materials and supplies
		 Allowance for loss or misstated or lost materials
			 and supplies under investigation
Total

Separate
financial statements

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

585.51

475.36

585.51

475.36

542.81
1,092.80

566.62
1,363.74

539.21
1,092.80

566.62
1,363.74

263.66
47.35
2,532.13
6.93
2,539.06
12.20

207.49
85.70
2,698.91
5.06
2,703.97
8.68

263.66
47.35
2,528.53
6.93
2,535.46
12.20

207.49
85.70
2,698.91
5.06
2,703.97
8.68

47.35
2,479.51

85.70
2,609.59

47.35
2,475.91

85.70
2,609.59

		 For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, allowance for materials and supplies is recognized
as decrease in expenses amounting to Baht 34.84 million and Baht 2.80 million, respectively.
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5.5 Special–purpose deposits at financial institutions consist of:

Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated and separate financial
statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Electricity usage guarantee fund (Note 5.24)
Current accounts
Savings accounts
Fixed deposits
Sinking fund for repayment of bonds
Current accounts
Savings accounts
Fixed deposits
Interest from electricity usage guarantee fund
Current accounts
Savings accounts
Fixed deposits
Interest from KFW fund
Current accounts
Savings accounts
Fixed deposits
Subsidy from energy conservation policy from the Energy
Policy and Planning Office and other governmental agencies
		Savings accounts
PEA fund for guarantee of employees’ loans
Current accounts
Savings accounts
Total

Dec. 31, 2014

0.001
0.012
23,475.64
23,475.65

0.001
0.012
21,864.62
21,864.63

0.001
10.37
5,161.46
5,171.83

0.001
2,585.44
3,031.12
5,616.56

0.001
9.88
3,476.89
3,486.77

0.001
25.49
2,801.06
2,826.55

0.001
15.52
139.21
154.73

0.002
13.18
132.21
145.39

0.003
0.003

20.88
20.88

0.004
2,565.83
2,565.83
34,854.82

0.004
1,793.55
1,793.55
32,267.56
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		 Electricity usage guarantee fund, PEA fund for guarantee of employees’ loans and sinking fund for
repayment of bonds are deposits at financial institutions that can be used in Provincial Electricity Authority’s activities
in case of Provincial Electricity Authority having deficits in working capital. Interest from electricity usage guarantee
fund, interest from KFW fund and subsidy from energy conservation policy from the Energy Policy and Planning Office
are deposits at financial institutions which are restricted for specific purposes as determined by Provincial Electricity
Authority.
		 Sinking fund for repayment of bonds is used as PEA guarantee for repayment of bonds at the maturity
date. Provincial Electricity Authority will periodically deposit to the account for repayment of bonds with maturity
period within 3 years.
5.6 Accrued revenues consist of:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated
financial statements

Accrued interest
Accrued revenues from the
Power Development Fund
Other accrued revenues
Total

Separate
financial statements

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

725.38

781.88

725.13

781.56

7,933.34
183.73
8,842.45

2,827.89
156.01
3,765.78

7,933.34
183.73
8,842.20

2,827.89
156.01
3,765.46

		 As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, accrued revenues from the Power Development Fund partly includes
refundable VAT from the Power Development Fund amounting to Baht 1,536.61 million and Baht 1,300.52 million,
respectively.
5.7 Other current assets consist of:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated
financial statements

Employee receivables
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Suspense accounts
Inter–account between PEA and
Employee Gratuity Fund
Withholding income tax
Total

Separate
financial statements

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

118.35
406.55
22.66
32.57

79.27
411.35
17.75
704.14

118.35
406.25
106.55
32.57

79.27
411.33
17.64
704.14

0.03
0.69
580.85

0.71
0.23
1,213.45

0.03
663.75

0.71
1,213.09
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5.8 Investments in associates

		 Investments in associates in the consolidated financial statements represent the investments of PEA
Encom International Company Limited, the subsidiary of Provincial Electricity Authority, which has invested in 4 solar
power plants projects since May 12, 2015, and has acquired 25% shareholding for each of the companies. Investments
in associates are accounted using the equity method.
		 As at December 31, 2015, investments in associates consist of:
Unit: Million Baht
Dec. 31, 2015
Associates

1.
2.
3.
4.

Solar Power (Surin 1) Co., Ltd.
Solar Power (Surin 2) Co., Ltd.
Solar Power (KhonKaen 10) Co., Ltd.
Solar Power (Loei 2) Co., Ltd.

Cost
Method

41.25
41.25
41.25
41.25
165.00

Dec. 31, 2014

Equity
Method

63.02
58.57
59.45
60.67
241.71

Cost
Method

41.25
41.25
41.25
41.25
165.00

Equity
Method

48.67
48.94
48.65
48.83
195.09

5.9 Investments in subsidiary

		 Investments in subsidiary represented investment in PEA Encom International Company Limited. The
company is registered in Thailand with a purpose of investing in electricity-related businesses and conducting training
services concerning electricity systems and other private organizations both domestically and internationally. Provincial
Electricity Authority has acquired 100% shareholding of its ordinary shares. The investment in subsidiary is accounted
using the cost method.
		 As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, Provincial Electricity Authority has investments in subsidiary in the
separate financial statements of Baht 473.28 million and Baht 447.38 million, respectively.
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5.10 Investment property

Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated and separate financial statements
Land and land
improvements

Cost
As at January 1, 2015
		 - Additions
As at December 31, 2015
Accumulated depreciation
As at January 1, 2015
		 - Additions
As at December 31, 2015
Net book value
As at December 31, 2014
As at December 31, 2015

Vacant
building

Total

74.79
207.66
282.45

289.74
185.25
474.99

364.53
392.91
757.44

-

27.64
14.79
42.43

27.64
14.79
42.43

74.79
282.45

262.10
432.56

336.89
715.01

		 As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, according to the appraisal value announced by the Treasury
department, land has total fair value of Baht 1,049.17 million and Baht 295.83 million, respectively, and buildings
has fair value of Baht 174.28 million and Baht 110.05 million, respectively.
		 Provincial Electricity Authority has rental income on investment property for the years ended December
31, 2015 and 2014, amounting to Baht 23.12 million and Baht 15.59 million, respectively. The acquisition cost of land
used for rental are Baht 137.69 million and Baht 109.08 million, respectively.

Cost
As at January 1, 2015
- Additions
- Decreases
As at December 31, 2015
Accumulated depreciation
As at January 1, 2015
- Additions
- Decreases
As at December 31, 2015
Net book value
As at December 31, 2014
As at December 31, 2015
13,655.62
676.13
22.55
14,309.20
4,723.24
476.09
37.89
5,161.44
8,932.38
9,147.76

1,103.24
112.75
8.92
1,207.07
9,652.72
9,879.22

Buildings and
constructions

10,755.96
728.44
398.11
11,086.29

Land and land
improvements

5.11 Property, plant and equipment

1,331.48
1,274.19

905.75
85.39
1.44
989.70

2,237.23
28.10
1.44
2,263.89

Electricity
generating
systems

196,038.08
202,805.22

177,827.61
16,609.23
2,212.08
192,224.76

373,865.69
22,868.08
1,703.79
395,029.98

Electricity
distributing
systems

7,620.40
7,434.50

9,937.67
1,274.08
287.61
10,924.14

17,558.07
1,112.67
312.10
18,358.64

Furniture,
tools and
equipment

Consolidated financial statements

1,652.14
1,575.42

6,772.98
267.29
58.99
6,981.28

8,425.12
191.02
59.44
8,556.70

Vehicles

433.52
551.29

240.22
139.51
172.16
207.57

673.74
258.14
173.02
758.86

Vehicles
from finance
leases

225,660.72
232,667.60

201,510.71
18,964.34
2,779.09
217,695.96

427,171.43
25,862.58
2,670.45
450,363.56

Total

Unit: Million Baht
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13,655.62
676.13
22.55
14,309.20
4,723.24
476.09
37.89
5,161.44
8,932.38
9,147.76

10,755.96
728.44
398.11
11,086.29
1,103.24
112.75
8.92
1,207.07
9,652.72
9,879.22

constructions

Buildings and

1,331.48
1,274.19

905.75
85.39
1.44
989.70

2,237.23
28.10
1.44
2,263.89

systems

generating

Electricity

196,038.08
202,805.22

177,827.61
16,609.23
2,212.08
192,224.76

373,865.69
22,868.08
1,703.79
395,029.98

systems

distributing

Electricity

7,620.10
7,434.04

9,937.23
1,273.92
287.61
10,923.54

17,557.33
1,112.35
312.10
18,357.58

equipment

tools and

Furniture,

1,652.16
1,575.44

6,772.97
267.29
58.99
6,981.27

8,425.13
191.02
59.44
8,556.71

Vehicles

430.98
549.36

239.69
138.90
172.16
206.43

670.67
258.14
173.02
755.79

leases

from finance

Vehicles

225,657.90
232,665.23

201,509.73
18,963.57
2,779.09
217,694.21

427,167.63
25,862.26
2,670.45
450,359.44

Total

		
		 Property, Plant and equipment that are fully depreciated but are continuing use for Provincial Electricity Authority and its subsidiary as at December 31,
2015 and 2014, are Baht 0.63 million and Baht 0.51 million, respectively.

Cost
As at January 1, 2015
- Additions
- Decreases
As at December 31, 2015
Accumulated depreciation
As at January 1, 2015
- Additions
- Decreases
As at December 31, 2015
Net book value
As at December 31, 2014
As at December 31, 2015

improvements

Land and land

Separate financial statements

Unit: Million Baht

118

PEA

Annual Report
2 01 5

PEA

Annual Report
2015

5.12 Constructions in progress

Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated and separate financial statements
PEA capital
budget

As at January 1, 2015
- Additions
- Decreases
As at December 31, 2015
		

27,315.19
15,683.30
15,123.76
27,874.73

Partially funded
by electricity
users

5,009.29
6,590.95
6,881.63
4,718.61

Funded by
interest from
electricity
usage
guarantee

0.56
0.01
0.55

Total

32,324.48
22,274.81
22,005.40
32,593.89
Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and separate financial statements
PEA capital
budget

As at January 1, 2014
- Additions
- Decreases
As at December 31, 2014

25,062.68
15,307.78
13,055.27
27,315.19

Partially funded
by electricity
users

4,469.77
6,142.87
5,603.35
5,009.29

Funded by
interest from
electricity
usage
guarantee

0.11
0.02
0.13
-

Total

29,532.56
21,450.67
18,658.75
32,324.48
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5.13 Intangible assets

Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated financial statements
Computer software
licenses

Cost
As at January 1, 2015
- Additions
- Decreases
As at December 31, 2015
Accumulated amortization
As at January 1, 2015
- Additions
- Decreases
As at December 31, 2015
Net book value
As at December 31, 2014
As at December 31, 2015

Finance lease
assets

Total

3,087.06
75.68
1.79
3,160.95

3,365.99
62.32
3,428.31

6,453.05
138.00
1.79
6,589.26

2,529.23
279.09
1.79
2,806.53

2,000.19
745.78
2,745.97

4,529.42
1,024.87
1.79
5,552.50

557.83
354.42

1,365.80
682.34

1,923.63
1,036.76
Unit: Million Baht

Separate financial statements
Computer software
licenses

Cost
As at January 1, 2015
- Additions
- Decreases
As at December 31, 2015
Accumulated amortization
As at January 1, 2015
- Additions
- Decreases
As at December 31, 2015
Net book value
As at December 31, 2014
As at December 31, 2015

Finance lease
assets

Total

3,087.01
75.65
1.79
3,160.87

3,365.99
62.32
3,428.31

6,453.00
137.97
1.79
6,589.18

2,529.22
279.08
1.79
2,806.51

2,000.19
745.78
2,745.97

4,529.41
1,024.86
1.79
5,552.48

557.79
354.36

1,365.80
682.34

1,923.59
1,036.70
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		 Intangible assets that are fully amortized but are continuing use for Provincial Electricity Authority and
its subsidiary as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, are approximately Baht 0.004 million.
5.14 Other non–current assets

consist of:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated and separate financial
statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Employee receivables
Long-term receivables
Deferred expenses
Retentions and deposits
PEA Employee Gratuity Fund
Cash
Current accounts
Savings accounts
Fixed deposits
Total
5.15 Trade accounts payable

Dec. 31, 2014

71.20
22.40
6.01
2.51

63.66
1.14
3.34

0.004
0.011
2.46
3.61
108.21

0.004
0.011
0.045
6.35
74.55

consist of:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated
financial statements

Accounts payable-electricity
Accounts payable-domestic
Suspense payable-unbilled
Total

Separate
financial statements

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

36,837.06
780.11
1,039.24
38,656.41

36,406.64
655.18
798.97
37,860.79

36,837.06
763.99
1,039.24
38,640.29

36,406.64
653.85
798.97
37,859.46

		 Consolidated and separate financial statements as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, suspense payable–
unbilled amounting to Baht 1,039.24 million and Baht 798.97 million, respectively, represent payable for goods or
services received but Provincial Electricity Authority has not received invoices from payables.
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5.16 Long-term loans are as follows:

Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated and separate financial statements
Type of loans

Domestic loans
- Ministry of Finance

- Bonds
		 Total domestic loans
Foreign loans
- Financial institutions
		 Total foreign loans
		 Total long-term loans
Less Current portion
Total

Repayment
terms

1988 – 2031

Currency

Fixed
interest rate
Dec. 31, 2015 Dec. 31, 2014
per contract
(%)

Interest free

246.69

286.83

2013 – 2023
2005 – 2040

Canadian
Dollar
Baht
Baht

2.919 *
3.28 – 6.84

2,625.00
80,662.00
83,533.69

2,975.00
78,099.00
81,360.83

2000 - 2020
2007 - 2023

Euro
Euro

2.00
8.00 **

437.59
311.32
748.91
84,282.60
7,911.66
76,370.94

538.06
355.05
893.11
82,253.94
7,939.97
74,313.97

		 * Borrowing interest rate equals to reference interest rate (average minimum six-month fixed deposit
rate for individual person during seven days of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, KrungThai Bank Public Company
Limited, Kasikorn Bank Public Company Limited and Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited) plus 1.68% per
annum.
		 ** Borrowing interest rate of 8% per annum under the loan contract which includes interest expense
that Provincial Electricity Authority paid to KFW fund at the rate of 6% per annum, and that are recorded as interest
expense at the rate of 2% per annum.
		 Provincial Electricity Authority has obtained loan to construct buildings, electricity generating and
distribution system. The borrowing costs that directly attributable to the construction of qualifying assets and incurred
from loan made for specific purpose are capitalized as cost of assets at interest rates of 3.28% – 6.84% per annum.
		 Interest expenses on loans for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, amounting to Baht 3,597.41
million and Baht 3,505.95 million, respectively, were capitalized as cost of construction in progress amounting to
Baht 404.39 million and Baht 253.73 million and were recognized as expenses in the statements of comprehensive
income for Baht 3,193.02 million and Baht 3,252.22 million, respectively.
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5.17 Finance lease liabilities consist of:

Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated financial statements
After 1 year
but within 5 years

Within 1 year
Dec. 31,
2015

Present value of finance lease liabilities
- Computer software systems
- Vehicles
Total

837.07
144.90
981.97

Dec. 31,
2014

868.24
105.71
973.95

Dec. 31,
2015

427.05
427.05

Total

Dec. 31,
2014

Dec. 31,
2015

Dec. 31,
2014

700.21
330.62
1,030.83

837.07
571.95
1,409.02

1,568.45
436.33
2,004.78

Unit: Million Baht
Separate financial statements
Within 1 year
Dec. 31,
2015

Present value of finance lease liabilities
- Computer software systems
- Vehicles
Total
		

837.07
144.23
981.30

Dec. 31,
2014

868.24
105.09
973.33

After 1 year
but within 5 years
Dec. 31,
2015

425.61
425.61

Total

Dec. 31,
2014

Dec. 31,
2015

Dec. 31,
2014

700.21
328.58
1,028.79

837.07
569.84
1,406.91

1,568.45
433.67
2,002.12

5.17.1 Finance lease liabilities – computer software systems
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated and separate financial statements
Within 1 year
Dec. 31,
2015

Finance lease liabilities
Less Future financial charge
Present value of finance lease
liabilities

Dec. 31,
2014

After 1 year
but within 5 years
Dec. 31,
2015

Dec. 31,
2014

Total
Dec. 31,
2015

Dec. 31,
2014

862.13
25.06

947.45
79.21

-

724.94
24.73

862.13
25.06

1,672.39
103.94

837.07

868.24

-

700.21

837.07

1,568.45
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5.17.2 Finance lease liabilities – vehicles
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated financial statements
After 1 year
but within 5 years

Within 1 year
Dec. 31,
2015

Finance lease liabilities
Less Future financial charge
Present value of finance lease liabilities

181.79
36.89
144.90

Dec. 31,
2014

134.32
28.61
105.71

Dec. 31,
2015

Dec. 31,
2014

474.57
47.52
427.05

373.02
42.40
330.62

Total
Dec. 31,
2015

Dec. 31,
2014

656.36
84.41
571.95

507.34
71.01
436.33

Unit: Million Baht
Separate financial statements
Within 1 year
Dec. 31,
2015

Finance lease liabilities
Less Future financial charge
Present value of finance lease liabilities

180.99
36.76
144.23

Dec. 31,
2014

133.52
28.43
105.09

After 1 year
but within 5 years
Dec. 31,
2015

Dec. 31,
2014

473.01
47.40
425.61

370.73
42.15
328.58

Total
Dec. 31,
2015

654.00
84.16
569.84

Dec. 31,
2014

504.25
70.58
433.67

5.18 Accrued remittance to the Ministry of Finance consist of:

Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated and separate financial
statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Beginning balance
Additional remittance to the Ministry of Finance
Reserve for remittance to public revenues 45% of net profit
Additional remittance to the Ministry of Finance for 2015
Remit to public revenues during the year
Total

5,296.00
3.00
10,644.00
3,000.00
(12,271.00)
6,672.00

Dec. 31, 2014

8,561.78
21.22
10,247.00
(13,534.00)
5,296.00

		 Additional remittance to the Ministry of Finance of the year 2015 amounting to Baht 3.00 million is the
amount which the Ministry of Finance considers Provincial Electricity Authority to made an additional remittance
based on the year 2014 estimation.
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		 Additional remittance to the Ministry of Finance of the year 2014 amounting to Baht 21.22 million is an
adjustment made for the amount of accrued remittance to the Ministry of Finance for which Provincial Electricity
Authority has made provision for less than the amount which Ministry of Finance has specified.
5.19 Deposits payable

consist of:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated and separate financial
statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Accrued remittance to the Power Development Fund
Pending repayment electricity usage guarantee
Other deposits payable
Total

Dec. 31, 2014

341.68
223.05
136.47
701.20

337.06
202.44
111.68
651.18

5.20 Other current liabilities consist of:

Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated
financial statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Unearned revenues
Retentions and deposits
Withholding tax payable
Suspense accounts
Provisions
Total

174.76
444.14
0.02
152.34
4.13
775.39

Dec. 31, 2014

142.07
116.60
50.13
0.67
309.47

Separate
financial statements
Dec. 31, 2015

174.70
444.14
152.34
4.13
775.31

Dec. 31, 2014

142.01
116.60
50.13
0.67
309.41

5.21 Long–term provisions

		 Consolidated and separate financial statements as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, amounting to Baht
192.21 million and Baht 2.87 million, respectively, represent the provisions that Provincial Electricity Authority was
filed in litigation as a defendant, which Provincial Electricity Authority assesses the status of the lawsuits and estimates
that 29 lawsuits and 19 lawsuits, respectively.
5.22 Construction obligations

		 Consolidated and separate financial statements as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, amounting to Baht
9,445.29 million and Baht 9,095.11 million, respectively, represent the obligations of Provincial Electricity Authority to
expand the electricity distributing areas for electricity users which the electricity users have fully or partially funded
the construction costs. The ownership of the assets belong to Provincial Electricity Authority.
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5.23 Deferred revenues

consist of:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated and separate financial
statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Contributions for construction
Deferred revenues
Deferred rental revenue
Total

Dec. 31, 2014

41,609.63
1,576.46
409.75
43,595.84

38,179.60
1,537.29
237.52
39,954.41

5.24 Electricity usage guarantee

represent cash received from electricity users to guarantee for their
electricity usage, which are deposited at financial institutions and used as working capital, is as follows:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated and separate financial
statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Electricity usage guarantee fund (Note 5.5)
Electricity usage guarantee - additional deposits by Provincial
Electricity Authority
Total

Dec. 31, 2014

23,475.65

21,864.63

178.89
23,654.54

161.01
22,025.64

5.25 Employee gratuity fund

		

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, Employee Gratuity Fund is as follows:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated and separate financial
statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Beginning balance
Add Contributions during the year
Payments for shortage from PEA
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year
Less Payments to employees and provident fund
Repayments for surplus of the gratuity fund
		 over obligations
Ending balance of fund equal to obligations to be
paid to resigned employees

Dec. 31, 2014

13.27
0.44
0.46
0.13
14.30
7.09

16.90
0.64
1.92
0.34
19.80
6.19

0.13

0.34

7.08

13.27
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5.26 Employee benefit obligations

		 Employee benefits of Provincial Electricity Authority and its subsidiary consist of post–employment
benefits including defined contribution plans (provident fund), defined benefit plans and other long-term employee
benefits according to the State Enterprise Labor Relations Act, B.E. 2543 (2000).
		 As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, employee benefit obligations are as follows:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated
financial statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Separate
financial statements

Dec. 31, 2014

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

Post–employment benefits under
defined benefit plans
		Retirement pension

9,738.10

9,408.14

9,737.43

9,407.76

		 Retirement souvenir gifts

198.71

137.34

198.71

137.34

		 Accumulate vacation leave
			upon retirement

973.79

940.85

973.79

940.85

10,910.60

10,486.33

10,909.93

10,485.95

Souvenir gift for long tenure

120.30

81.16

120.30

81.16

Total other long–term employee
benefits

120.30

81.16

120.30

81.16

11,030.90

10,567.49

11,030.23

10,567.11

Total post–employment benefits
under defined benefit plans
Other long–term employee benefits

Total

		 Post–employment benefits under defined benefit plans and other long–term employee benefits in the
statements of comprehensive income as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, are as follows:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated
financial statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Current service costs
Interest on obligations
Actual cost
Actuarial losses
Total

471.39
422.71
(572.63)
141.94
463.41

Dec. 31, 2014

437.91
399.83
(390.21)
124.10
571.63

Separate
financial statements
Dec. 31, 2015

471.12
422.69
(572.63)
141.94
463.12

Dec. 31, 2014

437.79
399.82
(390.21)
124.10
571.50
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		 Movement in the present value of provisions for employee benefits for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014, are as follows:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated
financial statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Separate
financial statements

Dec. 31, 2014

Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

Beginning balance of provision for
employee benefits
10,567.49
9,995.86
10,567.11
9,995.61
Current service costs
471.39
437.91
471.12
437.79
Interest on obligations
422.71
399.83
422.69
399.82
Actual cost
(572.63)
(390.21)
(572.63)
(390.21)
Actuarial losses
141.94
124.10
141.94
124.10
Ending balance of provision for
employee benefits
11,030.90
10,567.49
11,030.23
10,567.11
		 Actuarial assumptions used to the calculation of provisions under post–employment benefits plan as
at December 31, 2015 and 2014, are as follows:
Consolidated and separate financial
statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

(percentage)
4.00
7.50
0.30

(percentage)
4.00
7.50
0.29

Discount rate
Future salary incremental rate
Employee turnover rate

		 For the post–employment benefits under defined contribution plans, Provincial Electricity Authority has
established the provident fund. The fund is monthly contributed by salary of employee and by Provincial Electricity
Authority. PEA registered provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act, B.E. 2530 (1987).
		 For the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, Provincial Electricity Authority contributes to the
provident fund amounting to Baht 1,462.24 million and Baht 1,392.76 million, respectively.
5.27 Executives’ remunerations

consist of:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated
financial statements

Dec. 31, 2015

Directors’ remunerations
Management’s remunerations
Total

13.84
63.62
77.46

Dec. 31, 2014

23.18
105.38
128.56

Separate
financial statements
Dec. 31, 2015

12.43
63.62
76.05

Dec. 31, 2014

21.71
105.38
127.09
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5.28 Operational results

		

5.28.1 Operating results for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, are as follows:
Unit: Million Baht
Consolidated financial statements
Dec. 31, 2015

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income
Other revenues
Other expenses
Financial costs
Share of profits of associates
Profit for the years

463,724.38
441,164.87
22,559.51
2,103.92
282.12
3,313.46
66.58
21,134.43

Dec. 31, 2014

463,069.26
441,171.20
21,898.06
1,954.55
54.02
3,408.91
30.09
20,419.77

Increase
(Decrease)

655.12
(6.33)
661.45
149.37
228.10
(95.45)
36.49
714.66

Percentage

0.14
3.02
7.64
422.25
(2.80)
121.27
3.50

			
For the year ended December 31, 2015, Provincial Electricity Authority and its subsidiary have
profit of Baht 21,134.43 million which increases from the same period of prior year by Baht 714.66 million. The
increase is attributable to increase in operating income by Baht 661.45 million, increase in other revenues by Baht
149.37 million, increase in other expenses by Baht 228.10 million and decrease in financial costs by Baht 95.45 million,
and increase in share of profits of associates by Baht 36.49 million.
Unit: Million Baht
Separate financial statements

Dec. 31, 2015

Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating income
Other revenues
Other expenses
Financial costs
Profit for the years

463,707.69
441,139.07
22,568.62
2,099.11
282.12
3,313.29
21,072.32

Dec. 31, 2014

463,060.96
441,152.16
21,908.80
1,950.94
54.02
3,408.72
20,397.00

Increase
(Decrease)

646.73
(13.09)
659.82
148.17
228.10
(95.43)
675.32

Percentage

0.14
3.01
7.59
422.25
(2.80)
3.31
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For the year ended December 31, 2015, Provincial Electricity Authority has profit of Baht 21,072.32
million which increases from the same period of prior year by Baht 675.32 million. The increase is attributable to
increase in operating income by Baht 659.82 million, increase in other revenues by Baht 148.17 million, increase in
other expenses by Baht 228.10 million and decrease in financial costs by Baht 95.43 million.
			
The National Telecommunications Commission allowed Provincial Electricity Authority to operate
the third type of telecommunication business (fiber optic) since March 1, 2007. In the year 2015, Provincial Electricity
Authority has revenues from telecommunication business amounting to Baht 188.45 million which are included in
other operating revenues.
			
Provincial Electricity Authority has received license to operate broadcasting business for providing
assistance on broadcasting. The service includes a rental of electric pole for putting up cable line by National
Broadcasting and Telecommunications Commission beginning from December 16, 2014 to December 15, 2028. In
the year 2015, Provincial Electricity Authority has revenues on rental of electric pole for putting up cable line from
Cable TVs business amounting to Baht 21.84 million.
			
According to the resolution of Energy Regulatory Commission No. ERC 5502/3289.2 dated on
July 31, 2012, the committee has agreed on refunding interest from electricity usage guarantee fund in the form of
interest payment on an annual basis from Provincial Electricity Authority to customers who has paid the deposit in
cash. The amount of refund is based on annual average interest rate of Krung Thai Bank Public Company Limited’s
savings account for the state enterprises to the electricity user of medium general services, of large general services
and of specific business services. In the case of power meter has been cut out of power supply and customers who
discontinued using the electricity services during the year, this benefit would not be given. In the year 2015, Provincial
Electricity Authority has refunded the benefit to the customers amounting to Baht 23.83 million and recorded as
other expenses.
			
According to the resolution of Energy Regulatory Commission No. ERC 5502/ว5088 dated on
June 19, 2014 and No. ERC 5502/ว8907 dated on October 14, 2014, the committee has agreed on refunding interest
from electricity usage guarantee fund to user of residential general service and of small general service, according to
the concept of refunding interest to user of medium general service, of large general service, and of specific business
services. The refunding will be made on every 5 years basis. The amount of refunding interest is calculated from the
period beginning from January 2015 to December 2019 and the interest will be paid within the first quarter of the
year 2020. In the year 2015, Provincial Electricity Authority is obliged to refund interest to the customers amounting
to Baht 71.52 million and recorded as other expenses.

61,890.33

		 Total Liabilities and Equity

-

		 Long-term loans

4,463.38

40,256.99

		 Current Liabilities

		Equity

61,890.33

		 Total Assets

57,426.95

6,207.22

		 Other non-current assets

		 Total Liabilities

49,839.73

		 Property, plant and equipment

17,169.96

1,032.11

		 Other current assets

		 Other non-current liabilities

4,811.27

		 Trade accounts receivable

of financial position

Dec. 31,
2015

60,076.69

4,192.08

55,884.61

15,954.09

-

39,930.52

60,076.69

6,018.50

48,248.18

1,090.11

4,719.90

Dec. 31,
2014

North

62,918.09

(4,026.43)

66,944.52

20,301.03

-

46,643.49

62,918.09

5,835.04

50,677.12

1,448.12

4,957.81

Dec. 31,
2015

10,999.10

73,418.15

1,030.56

17,684.70

Dec. 31,
2015

11,619.36

70,165.32

1,085.00

17,745.88

Dec. 31,
2014

Central

31,264.86

-

212,445.25

184,488.68

(83,873.12)

29,005.68

-

61,237.72 103,132.51 100,615.56

(3,437.73)

64,675.45 (109,312.74)

18,806.55

-

45,868.90 (140,577.60) (112,878.80)

61,237.72 103,132.51 100,615.56

5,863.08

49,290.56

1,419.26

4,664.82

Dec. 31,
2014

Northeast

5.29.1 Statements of Financial position of operating segments are as follows:

Information from statements

		

5.29 Financial information of operating segments

70,944.66

31,861.44

39,083.22

18,216.84

-

20,866.38

70,944.66

8,337.47

55,884.85

824.23

5,898.11

Dec. 31,
2015

173,418.51

2,258.03

76,370.94

94,789.54

68,157.85

3,316.75

2,847.75

61,707.72

285.63

Dec. 31,
2015

68,903.27

68,157.85

34,695.58

232,667.60

66,042.74

33,637.52

Dec. 31,
2015

34,854.63

225,660.72

54,539.74

33,363.64

Dec. 31,
2014

Consolidated
financial
Statements

139,482.98

227,560.46

89,210.72

76,370.94

61,978.80

132,137.48

216,281.25

83,423.04

74,313.97

58,544.24

57,585.49 367,043.44 348,418.73

(82,873.34)

140,458.83

2,676.21

74,313.97

63,468.65

57,585.49 367,043.44 348,418.73

4,428.72

2,788.69

50,042.18

325.90

Dec. 31,
2014

Headquarter

29,767.79 (105,260.66)

39,135.48

16,980.51

-

22,154.97

68,903.27

6,924.97

55,167.97

903.19

5,907.14

Dec. 31,
2014

South
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		 Total expenses
		 Share of profit of associates
		 Income (loss) for the year
		 Other comprehensive income (loss)
		Total comprehensive income (loss)
			 for the year

		 Total revenues
		 Cost of electricity
		 Employee compensations
		 Employee benefit expenses
		 Executive remuneration
		 Preventive, repair and
			 maintenance, and construction
			expenses
		 Depreciation and amortization
			expenses
		 Other operating expenses
		 Other expenses
		 Financial costs

(52.64)

271.61

3,521.94
1,341.75
3.04
2.88

3,737.69
1,200.92
16.91
6.77
68,163.39
(26.51)
(26.13)

736.77

754.79

68,861.43
290.55
(18.94)

68,136.88
58,218.61
4,152.79
178.44
7.17

65,362.12
2,724.36
50.40

Dec. 31,
2014

69,151.98
58,541.19
4,409.02
189.79
4.35

66,338.68
2,658.49
154.81

Dec. 31,
2015

North

(587.51)

74,198.42
(567.30)
(20.21)

3,990.98
1,726.56
(18.99)
7.45

767.71

73,631.12
62,746.26
4,768.77
204.90
4.78

70,667.83
2,882.38
80.91

Dec. 31,
2015

237,842.89
3,749.90
155.29

Dec. 31,
2015

238,297.10
3,811.42
176.31

Dec. 31,
2014

Central

5,495.67
1,632.29
83.67
9.30

1,123.95
4,836.45
1,627.73
36.80
4.14

1,149.25

(626.49)

27,957.05

27,174.53

73,003.84 213,752.01 215,083.78
(600.26) 27,996.07 27,201.05
(26.23)
(39.02)
(26.52)

3,793.55
1,646.59
(23.53)
3.20

799.81

72,403.58 241,748.08 242,284.83
62,257.15 200,448.08 202,859.44
4,330.44
4,755.02
4,375.84
189.59
200.09
187.25
7.04
3.94
6.88

69,449.20
2,913.46
40.92

Dec. 31,
2014

Northeast

5.29.2 Operational results of operating segments are as follows:

Information from statements
of comprehensive income
		 Sales of electricity energy
		 Other operating revenues
		 Other revenues

		

2,093.86

77,399.50
2,110.84
(16.98)

4,237.86
1,686.54
103.01
8.29

992.72

79,510.34
66,408.04
3,799.01
159.54
4.49

76,626.75
2,676.50
207.09

Dec. 31,
2015

2,365.92

78,067.59
2,389.27
(23.35)

4,028.58
1,589.33
15.98
4.64

949.08

80,456.86
67,775.19
3,549.31
149.02
6.46

77,525.41
2,839.31
92.14

Dec. 31,
2014

South

(8,742.52)

10,549.09
66.58
(8,695.73)
(46.79)

1,295.16
1,302.06
97.52
3,281.65

626.83

1,786.78
3,748.25
137.72
59.90

280.96
1,505.82

Dec. 31,
2015

451,476.15
12,248.23
2,103.92

Dec. 31,
2015

450,633.83
12,435.42
1,954.55

Dec. 31,
2014

Consolidated
financial
Statements

18,757.36
7,548.37
282.12
3,313.46

4,266.00

17,420.05
7,418.81
54.02
3,408.91

4,180.43

(8,565.65)

20,992.49

20,295.67

10,315.52 444,760.45 444,634.12
30.09
66.58
30.09
(8,543.78) 21,134.43 20,419.77
(21.87)
(141.94)
(124.10)

1,239.53
1,213.41
21.73
3,394.05

545.52

1,741.65 465,828.30 465,023.80
(0.09) 388,143.57 391,110.30
3,668.26 21,480.07 20,076.64
132.10
892.04
836.40
101.01
77.46
128.56

146.87
1,594.78

Dec. 31,
2014

Headquarter
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6.

Related party transactions

Significant related party transactions are as follows:
6.1 Assets and Liabilities, as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, significant related party transactions are
as follows:
Unit: Million Baht
Item/Company’s name

Investments in associates
Solar Power (Surin1) Co., Ltd.
Solar Power (Surin2) Co., Ltd.
Solar Power (Khonkaen10) Co., Ltd.
Solar Power (Loei2) Co., Ltd.
Investments in subsidiary
PEA Encom International Co., Ltd.
Prepaid expense
PEA Encom International Co., Ltd.
Accounts payable
EGAT
Other payable
PEA Encom International Co., Ltd.

Relationship

Subsidiary’s associate
Subsidiary’s associate
Subsidiary’s associate
Subsidiary’s associate

Consolidated
financial statements

Separate
Financial statements

Dec. 31,
2015

Dec. 31,
2015

Dec. 31,
2014

Dec. 31,
2014

63.02
58.57
59.45
60.67

48.67
48.94
48.65
48.83

-

-

Subsidiary

-

-

473.28

447.38

Subsidiary

-

-

84.00

-

31,115.25

30,569.51

31,115.25

30,569.51

-

-

0.01

0.07

Related party
Subsidiary

6.2 Revenues and expenses, related party transaction as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, are as follows:

Unit: Million Baht
Item/Company’s name

Other operating revenues
PEA Encom International Co., Ltd.
Cost of electricity
EGAT
Solar Power (Surin1) Co., Ltd.
Solar Power (Surin2) Co., Ltd.
Solar Power (Khonkaen10) Co., Ltd.
Solar Power (Loei2) Co., Ltd.
Employee expenses
PEA Encom International Co., Ltd.
Maintenance Cost
PEA Encom International Co., Ltd.

Relationship

Subsidiary

Consolidated
financial statements

Separate
Financial statements

Dec. 31,
2015

Dec. 31,
2015

Dec. 31,
2014

Dec. 31,
2014

-

-

0.93

1.37

366,067.43
136.80
137.53
125.97
122.21

372,100.03
68.95
67.96
77.40
84.07

366,067.43
-

372,100.03
-

Subsidiary

-

-

0.33

0.56

Subsidiary

-

-

0.16

1.64

Related Party
Subsidiary’s associate
Subsidiary’s associate
Subsidiary’s associate
Subsidiary’s associate
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7.

Disclosure of financial instruments
7.1 Credit risk

		 Credit risk arises when accounts receivable do not comply with the terms and conditions of credit
agreements, causing losses to Provincial Electricity Authority. Also, a concentration exposure in credit portfolios is
regarded as an important aspect of credit risk. Most of Provincial Electricity Authority accounts receivable are juristic
person and natural person, however, there has been no significant losses that affects PEA financial statements in the
past. Therefore, it is assumed that Provincial Electricity Authority has no credit risk.
		 In case of financial assets recognition in the statements of financial position, book values of the assets
presented in the statements of financial position represent the maximum amount of exposure to the credit risk that
Provincial Electricity Authority may experience.
7.2 Interest rate risk

		 Interest rate risk arises when interest rate changes and may have a negative effect on operations of
Provincial Electricity Authority, however, most of Provincial Electricity Authority’s loans have fixed interest rates and
Provincial Electricity Authority’s loans are not significant amount except as mentioned in Note 5.16
7.3 Foreign exchange rate risk

		 Foreign exchange rate risk arises when there is a change in foreign exchange rates and may effect on
Provincial Electricity Authority and its subsidiary’s financial position in current and following years. However, most
of Provincial Electricity Authority’s transactions are incurred in Thai Baht, therefore, changes in foreign exchange rate
do not have significant impact on Provincial Electricity Authority and its subsidiary’s assets and liabilities.
7.4 Fair value of financial instruments

		 Provincial Electricity Authority and its subsidiary estimate fair value of financial Instruments by using
following assumptions:
		 Cash and cash equivalents, current investment, trade accounts receivable and trade accounts payable
have book values approximate their fair value due to their short-term period of settlement.
8.

Contingent liabilities

9.

Approval of financial statements

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, Provincial Electricity Authority was sued 83 cases and 81 cases, respectively,
with total amount in dispute of Baht 2,193.70 million and Baht 18,787.43 million, respectively.
Provincial Electricity Authority was filed in lawsuits including a lawsuit on lease computer software packages
for using in its core business. Portalnet co., Ltd., is authorized by its joint venture partner SPIES, sues Provincial
Electricity Authority to the Central Administrative Court on November 22, 2010, on cost of using computer software
prior to the commencement period of computer software leasing of Baht 1,868.71 million plus the interest at the
rate of 7.5 percent per annum from the date of filing the petition onwards. The Central Administrative Court has
dismissed the case. Currently, the case is on the proceedings of the Supreme Administrative Court. And, PEA legal
department predicts that Provincial Electricity Authority will win the case.

These financial statements were approved by PEA Governor on March 22, 2016.

123,210

6,781

Total Sales of Electricity
(Million kWh)

Average Customer
Consumption (kWh)

6,711

118,632

348,426

6,680

114,609

328,084

79,385

6,730

111,726

309,269

74,515

(25,395)

6,425

102,947

303,817

95,217

(21,607)

12,461

3,764

308,525

11,048

313,702

2011

6,475

100,750

283,997

85,747

(24,091)

14,763

2,936

306,012

10,077

313,634

2010

5,986

90,145

262,037

74,123

(21,520)

14,000

2,807

273,492

9,417

280,882

2009

6,137

89,602

247,323

71,416

(22,081)

10,169

4,160

252,248

9,334

257,243

2008

6,161

87,548

243,094

70,385

(20,369)

11,330

2,646

247,898

8,910

252,964

2007

67,539

(18,489)

12,889

2,426

239,912

9,590

245,637

2006

16,744

(18,741)

8,183

1,169

201,228

4,741

205,839

Amount

6,010

83,203

771

40,007

4,327,375

366,977

Net Assets
(Million Baht)

82,254

(26,240)

14,975

3,234

369,954

12,975

375,188

2012

Number of Customers 18,171,025 17,678,603 17,157,493 16,600,769 16,021,918 15,560,761 15,060,631 14,600,420 14,210,946 13,843,668
(Person)

84,283

Loans
(Million Baht)

(27,154)

21,078

3,542

409,450

15,182

418,888

2013

141,866

(37,230)

Investments In Long-term
Assets (Million Baht)

20,397

3,463

441,152

14,378

450,634

2014

63.49

48.19

83.88

49.44

83.80

12.83

48.08

31.26

63.02

24.79

101.36

%

10 Year Increase
(Decrease)

225,111

21,072

Net (Loss) Income
(Million Baht)

441,140

Operating Expenses
(Million Baht)

3,595

14,331

Other Revenue
(Million Baht)

Other Expense
(Million Baht)

451,476

2015

Net Electric Revenue
(Million Baht)

Description

Ten year growth statistic

1.21

4.00

2.76

5.01

2.24

7.25

5.04

4.01

6.28

4.10

6.28

Compound
Growth
Rate
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Number of
Employees

29,093

933

460,721

L.V.Distribution
Lines (Circuit - km)

Number of PEA
offices

299,865

H.V.Distribution
Lines (Circuit - km)

91

- PEA Generation
		 (Million kWh)

11,547

130,294

- Purchased Power
		 (Million kWh)

Transmission
Lines (Circuit - km)

130,385

18,937

3.75

2015

Total Electric Energy
(Million kWh)

Total Maximum
Demand (MW)

Average Price of
Electricity (Baht/kWh)

Description

28,109

934

442,348

296,809

11,414

104

125,380

125,484

18,030

3.89

2014

27,792

915

444,741

299,069

10,992

100

120,696

120,796

17,574

3.73

2013

28,060

915

457,118

298,984

10,341

95

118,644

118,739

17,001

3.46

2012

27,784

894

456,667

296,215

9,697

112

108,243

108,355

16,208

3.14

2011

27,818

900

445,813

291,594

9,214

103

107,655

107,758

16,154

3.11

2010

27,847

901

444,957

288,346

9,031

84

96,452

96,536

14,642

3.11

2009

27,521

901

450,424

289,328

8,701

66

95,541

95,607

14,127

2.87

2008

25,728

901

419,971

279,785

8,154

61

93,322

93,383

13,698

2.89

2007

26,304

902

416,802

276,018

8,157

55

88,744

88,799

13,073

2.95

2006

2,789

31

43,919

23,847

3,390

36

41,550

41,586

5,864

0.8

Amount

44.86

27.12

10.60

3.44

10.54

8.64

41.56

65.45

46.82

46.83

%

10 Year Increase
(Decrease)

1.01

0.34

1.01

0.83

3.54

5.16

3.92

3.92

3.78

2.43

Compound
Growth
Rate
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